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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
with our hearing.

We now have a quorum so we will start

As all of you are aware, Todd Conover, who is

the Comptroller of the Currency, recently - in fact, on December 2,
1983 - made an interpretive decision for ruling which says, "State
law which interferes with the ability of national banks to establish service charges is preempted."
Since his decision, there has been much publicity and discussion as how it was handled and how it will affect our state
government and the people in our state, which brings about the
purposes of this hearing.
First of all, we're here to give the Legislature and the
public an opportunity to learn why bank service charges have increased and what to expect in the near future.

Secondly, this

hearing will serve as a means for all sides to present objective
information on this important subject matter.

Having this hearing

does not imply that the Senate is for or against positions taken
by savings and loan associations, banks, consumers or regulators.
We do have an agenda that we will adhere to and intend to
adhere to.

We will first hear from our regulators, then the

financial institutions and consumers.

After each presentation

the Committee members will have an opportunity for questions and
answers.
The court cases that are active today have nothing to do
with our hearing today.

Therefore, I, as Chair of this Committee,

with the Committee's support, will not allow any testimony by
any attorneys involved in any pending court cases before any courts
in the state.

Allowing them to testify would prejudice the case
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because the subject matter is the same as the court case.

If

anyone has come here today as an attorney for any case that's in
litigation, we will try to accommodate you if we possibly can.
At the end of the hearing if you have some written material that
you would like to present to the Committee, or if the Committee
feels at that time, or by that time, that they would like to ask
questions, you will have that opportunity at that time.

So having

that understood, we will go on with our hearing.
We have here with us today Senator Art Torres, who is not
a member of this Committee, but has asked to sit in with the
Committee and he will be given the privileges as if he were a
member of this Committee as a body of the Senate.

We have Senators

Beverly, Robbins, Keene, Carpenter, and I'm Senator Vuich, and
we have Senator Boatwright, who has just joined us -- all members
of the Committee.

And Senator Russell just arrived.

Thank you.

Before we start, and as Mr. Lou Carter, who is the Superintendent of Banks, State Banking Department, from Sacramento
is stepping forward, Senator Robbins wanted to make a statement.
SENATOR ROBBINS:

Thank you, Madame Chair.

I think it is

certainly extremely good in the manner that you and the Committee
staff have gone together and gone about in putting together this
hearing in terms of providing a very balanced format for presentation.
I wanted to just share with those who are going to be testifying, especially those who may be testifying with any proposed
solution that may involve additional government

regulat~on,

and

I'm not in any way suggesting that my good fried, the Superintendent,
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is going to suggest that, but that some of the other people
iater on the agenda may be proposing that, that excessive
service charges by financial institutions can be a matter of
very great concern to the individuals who pay them.

But one

thing that may be far worse than the problem of service charges
may be the problem of excessive governmental regulation.

The

truism is said many times of the person who says I'm from government and I'm here to help you.

We know what government regulation

did to airline fares, and the federal government for a . number of
years managed to devise a system that provided for passengers to
pay higher airline fares and for airlines to have lower profits,
both as a result of the government regulation.
So if any of the witnesses who testify do want to propose
a solution that would involve a greater degree of government
regulation and a greater role of government, I for one at least
would like to toss out to anyone doing that, the standard that
I would expect them to be held to, which is to explain how their
proposed regulatory scheme, if any, would provide more benefit
than the havoc or problem that it creates.
~1adame

And let me also suggest,

Chair, since the Superintendent has been kind enough to

come and visit with us, that he's more than welcome to take a
seat and relax while he testifies to the Committee and be comfortable, rather than standing at the podium which we reserve
for individuals we want to put on a little bit more of a hot seat.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Yes, Mr. Carter, you may sit at the

table and if you have any members of your staff that you would
like to have join you to assist in answering any questions that
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we might have a little later on, you're more than welcome to have
them join you at this time.

Those two leaving I don't believe

were members of your staff, were they, Mr. Carter?

(laughter)

Yes, Mr. Carter, you may proceed.
!•1R. CARTER:

Chairwoman Vuich and members of the Committee,

my name is Louis Carter.
State of California.

I'm the Superintendent of Banks for the

I have with me the Senior Deputy Super-

intendent, Howard Gould, and our Legislative Analyst, Peter
Van Hoecke.
I'm pleased to have the opportunity today to express my
views of the State Banking Department in regards to.the bank fee
issue that has recently attracted such attention.

I would like

to be responsive to the Committee's interests regarding bank fees
and deregulation and I offer our cooperation as you consider this
matter.
As we can recall, in 1933 Congress began passing laws to
protect, as well as to restrict, industry authority for operating
within the financial marketplace.

The Glass-Steagall Act, as

passed by Congress in 1933, barred commercial banks from the
investment
businesses.

~nderwriting

The passage

business and owning equity in non-banking

ot

the Bank Holding Company Act pro-

hibited the common ownership of banks and commercial enterprises.
These laws

wer~

passed expressly to maintain consumer confidence,

stability and the safety and soundness of the banking system.
These laws were also enacted to assure equitable and competitive
access to services byconsumers, and businesses, and to preserve
that long-held mechanism separating banking and commerce.
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A discussion here today on bank fees should begin with the
view of California's historic and current policy regarding bank
fees.

It appears to us that that policy is not to legislate or

regulate bank fees.

The intent not to regulate is reflected in

the major affirmative step taken by the Legislature and only the
provision for fees in our banking law, that being the provision
requiring only the disclosure of bank account charges found in
Financial Code Section 865 and following.
Our Department has not been involved in regulating bank
fees or service charges.

Our policy enforces disclosure

o~

charges determined in the marketplace to mandated charge limitations.

The disclosure provisions require a California bank to

provide each customer information about the actual charges which
may be imposed on an account, or the method of calculating the
charge if it is not fixed.

Prior to opening an account, the

customer must be notified of the

charg~s,

and after the account

is established, the customer must be notified in advance of any
increases in account charges.

Under such an arrangement, the

customer of financial services can make informed decisions regarding the price he or she pays for account services and can
evaluate alternatives that are available to them in the marketplace.
In this view, it appears that the current policy of
California is not to restrict account charges made by banks.
This policy provides formarketplace determination of fees and
charges and enables California banks to adjust to variations in
the market and in their market strategy and to continue service
to banking need$ of the public, despite even significant marketplace
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variations.
This is not unlike any other business we may be familiar
with.

We do not find it unusual that a manufacturer prices his

product to reflect his cost and desired profit, or that a
repairman charges us for his time and expense.

We have entered

the time when we can expect a similar viewpoint in banking.

Banks

have begun to unbundle services and have employed an accounting
tool that is relatively new to the banking industry and that's
functional cost analysis.

Instead of looking at the bank as one

large profit center, banks have created profit centers for the
various services they provide.

Now, like any other businesses,

banks are beginning to recognize their costs by product line
and have begun charging accordingly.
As requested for this hearing, our Department gathered disclosure information from numerous California banks, both state
and national, in different markets throughout California.
sam~ling

The

indicates that for demand deposit accounts, with no

minimum balance requirement, the average monthly fee was $3 and
a 15¢ charge for each check written is required.
monthly fee was $1.25 and the highest was $10.
ranged from no charge up to 25¢ a check.

The lowest
Check charges

Most of the banks

offer free accounts to those over the age of 62.

Checking ser-

vices were offered free to those who maintain a minimum balance
of $500 or $600, or an average balance of $1,000 per month.
As a comparison, we took a look at the fees of check
cashers.

Check cashers charge

1~%

of the amount of the check.

With the average weekly unemployment check of $106, those that
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can least afford extra costs could pay $6.36 per month just for
cashing their benefit payments, compared to a $3 bank charge.
Money orders to pay bills would cost 75¢ to $1.25 compared to
check charges averaging 15¢ per check.
As regards to the competitive context of which bank fees
and charges can be viewed today, we look at the wisdom of the
Legislature and the people of California who have determined that
the marketplace should be the determinant of bank fees.

The

issue of inquiry here today reflects the fact that the marketplace
is changing and is changing rapidly, and in conjunction, the
practice of banking, as you know, is also changing.
Today, the financial services industry is experiencing a
dynamic change.

Change was initiated by the non-bank competitor

taking advantage of loopholes in the Bank Holding Company Act,
offering money market mutual funds at market rates of interest.
This competition, along with the forces of inflation, the economic
downturn and high interest rates, caused banks to experience poor
operating results starting in 1982.
Deregulation is relatively new to the banking industry.
Historically, banks previously enjoyed protection on products
offered and were restricted on interest rates they could pay on
time deposits.

The earnings from low interest rates paid depositors

allowed banks to offer low or no service charges for the service
and provide other so-called free service to customers in order
to compete with the bank or savings and loan association down
the street.
Deregulation affects banks' profitability today as never
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before.

Price deregulation, or the rate of interest paid on

time deposits, has driven up the cost of funds to the extent that
banks have been forced to search for new product opportunities
to remain competitive in the marketplace.
The members of this Committee are aware of the progress of
deregulation of the banking industry.

Generally, we have deregu-

lated the liability side of the bank, resulting in the bank's
ability to attract deposits at an increased cost.
however,

deregulat~d

We have not,

the asset side of the bank to the same extent

to offer an array of new income opportunities to address the
increased expense liabilities or deposits.

That is not true for

many California state-chartered banks today with some of the
recent new power advances we have made here in California, but
it is important to the California banking industry in total.
In the face of partial deregulation, banks have been faced
with three basic options:
They can reduce costs of operations and staffing and
raise fees;
They can attempt to streamline their delivery systems
and use more electronic systems; or
~hey

can sell more products through the existing

system to spread overhead costs.
We have seen banks' concerned efforts to address these
options, but some options are long term and costly, and others
are blocked by legislative and regulatory conditions.

~fuat

be most quickly implemented to address the profit squeeze on
banks have been cost reductions and fee increases.

-8-

could

The impact of this partial deregulation is just beginning
to surface in ·figures available on bank financial performance.
Please keep in mind that 1983 was the first year of the full impact
of the liability side of deregulation.

For instance, in the Federal

Reserve Board's report on the performance of all commercial banks
for the first six months of 1983, we note that the net interest
margin, or the tax adjusted gross interest income less gross
interest expense, as a percent of assets, fell from 5.01% to 4.95%
for banks under $100 million in assets, which covers nearly
three-fourths of our California state-chartered banks.

The figure

remained constant for banks up to $1 billion, which covers all
but 10 of our 273 California state-chartered banks.

This indicates

that an increased proportion of interest is being paid out by these
banks that is being earned.
During this same period, the Federal Reserve Board reports
that non-interest income as a percent of average assets, or a
portion of which is fees and charges, for these same two categories of banks rose from .67% to .71% and .89% to .93%
respectively.
Also, a recent report by Olson Research Associates, surveying 140 banks nationwide, determined that for 1983 it was the
non-interest income category that rescued what otherwise would
have been a decline in those banks' profitability measures.
It appears that as deposits become proportionally more
expensive to attract, banks have turned to increased fee income
to balance this increased expense.
occurrence.

This is not an unexpected

In fact, throughout the 1980 and 1982 congressional

-9-

debates on the bank deposit deregulation legislation

(Deposito~y

Institutions Deregulation Act of 1980 and the Garn-St

Germain

Depository Institutions Act of 1982) it appears to be Congress'
understanding, if not intent, that when deposit interest rates
were deregulated, there would necessarily be a counter-balancing
increase in bank fees and charges.

Congress accepted this occur-

rence as being in the interest of allowing marketplace rates and
·costs for deposit accounts, and also as being important to the
safety and soundness of the financial institutions given this new
deposit authority.
We have attempted to develop some comparable statistics on
California state-chartered banks for the purpose of this hearing.
The timing of this hearing is prior to our compilation of year-end
results and therefore we can only report sample data.
We were able to obtain bank and income report data for 112
of our state-chartered banks.

For this sample we

no~e

that from

year-end 1982 to 1983 the net interest margin as a percentage of
total assets decreased from 4.78% to 4.44%.
With the same sample we found that non-interest income as
a percentage of total assets, which includes deposit account fees
and charges, increased from .85% to .98% during that same period.
Specifically, we looked at the amount of service charges
on deposit accounts and noticed that they increased by an amount
of 25%.
Our California sample statistics tell us a similar story
to the Federal Reserve Board's statistics.

Aside from the use of

fees and charges as a means of addressing the partial deregulation
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situation, banks are appropriately addressing their fees in a
more systematic and financially sound manner.

Banks have neces-

sarily begun to look at the services they provide, based on the
cost of providing the service, and are pricing them

accordin~ly.

The next factor I'll briefly discuss today is the Comptroller
of the Currency's recent interpretive ruling on national bank
deposit account fees.
As you are aware, last December Comptroller Conover issued
what he labeled "an interpretive ruling that prohibits states from
limiting the fees which national banks charge on deposit accounts."
This ruling has created the controversy currently surrounding the
matter on bank fees.

Reaction to Mr. Conover's ruling has been

heated on many fronts.

One of the primary complaintants has been

the Conference of State Bank Supervisors, a Washington, D.C. based
organization representing the banking superintendents from each
of the fifty states.

I serve on the Board of this organization.

They have formally requested that Comptroller Conover
rescind his ruling.

The objection is based on two key factors.

The first, a violation of administrative procedures, in

~hat

no

notice or opportunity for public comment was offered prior to
adopting the ruling; and secondly, and most importantly, from
the perspective of the Conference of State Bank Supervisors, as
well as our Department, and presumably from yours as legislators,
the significance of Mr. Conover's action with respect to state's
rights and his ability to preempt state law in the area of bank
deposit account fees.
Th~

Conference of State Bank Supervisors argues that there
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is legal precedent affirmed for nearly a century, that states
have the right to regulate the contractual activities of national
banks in their states such as deposit account service charges.
They say that, in fact, in 1977 the Comptroller's office acknowledged this matter.

The United States Supreme Court, as recently

as 1983, has determined that the traditional regulatory powers of
the states may not be displaced by federal action "unless that
was the clear and manifest purpose of Congress."
On the other hand, Mr. Conover argues that preemption is
appropriate and presumably contemplated by Congress in the passage
of the 1980 and 1982 depository institutions deregulation legislation.
In his position of guardian of the safety and soundness of
national banks, and in the interest of marketplace competition
desires by Congress, the Comptroller considered preemption an
appropriate action to protect national banks' ability to receive
deposits at market rates and prices and to free national banks
from the potential disruption of numerous state legislative and
judicial actions which could contrive a multitude of pricing
schemes on banks which are supposed to compete equally on a
nationwide basis.
Just as the Conference of State Bank Supervisors cites the
"clear and manifest purpose," judicial precedent to claim preemption is invalid.

Others claim that Conover's preemption is

supported by Supreme Court precedent which has determined that
state law which stands as an obstacle to the accomplishment of
the full purpose and objectives of Congress is preempted.
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From the California perspective, Conover's actions can be
viewed from two extreme points of view.

In one sense, considering

our historical and current policy of not regulating bank fees,
the Conover ruling has no practical effect.

we

do not regulate

bank fees or charges for either state or national banks, so
Mr. Conover changes nothing.

His ruling for marketplace deter-

mination is consistent with our adopted policy of marketplace
determination with disclosures.
The other point of view considers the preemption on a prospective basis . . Under the Conover ruling, California's option
to regulate fees of national banks in the future is presumably
removed should the Legislature or the people choose to alter
current public policy.
I should point out that the option to regulate the fees of
state banks would remain.

However, that would be a particularly

difficult state of affairs to create, and would be viewed as very
anti-competitive if California chose to limit the fees ·of state
banks but could not similarly limit those of national banks in
California.

And beyond that, the equally competitive marketplace

argument is a national one, as the advent of deposit account
deregulation was in direct response to nationwide competition
from money market funds.
It is with this second point of view that the most concern
is raised for those with concern and interest in state's rights
and with concern for the precedent of a federal regulatory agency's
ability to unilaterally preempt long-standing state determination.
I thank you for the opportunity to express the viewpoint of
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the State Banking Department and to provide the Committee with
information for your consideration as you review this issue.
Thank you very much.
VUICH:

CHAIRWO~tlrn

have some questions.

Thank you very much, Mr. Carter.

Senator Boatwright has a

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

We do

question ~

At one point you stated that the ser-

vice charges as a percentage of total assets had fallen from
4.78% to 4.4%.

I believe those were the figures.

Is that because

there has been a tremendous increase during the last year in the
total assets of the institutions?
MR. CARTER:

That was the net interest margin, Senator

Boatwright.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
MR. CARTER:

All right.

Right.

Not the service charges.

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Oh, all right.

Is that a result of

an increase in the assets since you applied that as a percentage
of the total assets?
~ffi.

CARTER:

Well, the cost of funds are increasing due

to the higher rates, or the market rates of interest that are
being paid depositors now.

So it's costing banks more to deal

with time deposits than it has in the past.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
on what end?

You say interest rates are rising? --

I thought they had been falling.

MR. CARTER:

Well, the interest rates that banks are paying

today are greater than they were before.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
MR. CARTER:

Two years ago?

I'd say two years ago.
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Well, perhaps not two

years ago but the interest rates are higher now.

Banks historically

were paying, say, 5.25% on regular savings accounts.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
to the prior year.

But I thought you were comparing that

I thought you referred to over a prior year

when you used those figures.

Maybe you could read that passage

again.
MR. CARTER:

From the year-end 1982 to 1983 the net

interest margin as a percentage of total assets decreased from
4.78% to 4.44%.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Okay.

So that's exactly what I said.

It wasn't compared to when they were paying 5.2, it was compared
to a year previous.

And it's my understanding that the interest

rates they're having to pay has been coming down over the prior
years.
that?

So my question is still there.

What is the reason for

Is it because the total assets increased and you're com-

paring it to total assets, is that why that percentage decreased?
MR. CARTER:

Total assets did increase in our state-chartered

banks as well as national banks.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Okay, so really that figure standing

alone doesn't mean much unless we know how much the increase was
and whether or not that increase in total assets offsets that
drop of about three one-hundredths of one percent.
MR. CARTER:

Yes, and I can provide you with that information.

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

I'd appreciate that because taken the

way you said it, it looked like the banks were losing money, but
it may be that since assets increased, that since you compared it
as a percentage of total assets, they're actually making more.
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Do you follow me on that?

.

MR. CARTER:

I understand what you're saying, Senator.

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

So I would appreciate it, because I

do know that two years ago, three years ago, interest rates were
higher, they were paying customers, they were paying more for
their money and it has been coming down.

So, I would like an

answer and if you could provide those figures I'd appreciate it.
MR. CARTER:

Yes sir, I certainly will, Senator.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
SENATOR KEENE:

Further questions?

Senator Keene.

I had to step out for a few moments so I'm

not sure whether your testimony covered this, whether it's on the
Co~ittee

agenda today, or whether I just missed it, but did you

talk about fees in connection with the processing -- service
charges, rather, in connection with the ·processing of loans?
MR. CARTER:

No sir, we did nqt.

SENATOR KEENE:

The reason is that it's not on the agenda

today or what?
CHAIRNOMAN VUICH:

Bank service charges of all kinds are

on the agenda today.
SENATOR KEENE:

Well, aren't there service charges connected

with the processing of loans that ought to be taken

in~o

consider-

ation as well?
MR. CARTER:

There are loan fees, yes sir, that are involved.

We limited our testimony only to depository fees today.
SENATOR KEENE:

I guess my question is why?

~·7as

it a mis-

understanding about the scope of the agenda or ...•.
MR. CARTER:

Well, we did not do an analysis on loan fees.
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We did our analysis on service charge fees from disclosures that
we obtained from several banks throughout California.
SENATOR KEENE:
charge by banks?

But aren't loan fees a form of service

And aren't they the largest form of service

charge that people, who are consumers, have to contend with?
MR. CARTER:

Well, I think they could be considered a

form of service charge, but they are loan fees connected with the
loan, as you know.
CHAIRWOr~

And we just did not address that today, sir.

VUICH:

They are bank service charges, which he

interprets as loan fees, but they are servicing the loans.
SENATOR KEENE:

It seems to me an incredible vacuum then

that those are not addressed, because consumers are certainly
concerned with the amount they have to pay in the way of a service
charge for the processing of a loan.
l1R. CARTER:

Well, generally, in most banks, they may have

a loan fee perhaps on a line of credit.

A customer going into

a bank to purchase an automobile, or to have an automobile
financed, then that customer pays an interest rate for a certain
amount of time which is calculated.
SENATOR KEENE:

And ofentimes some points along with that

and oftentimes a service charge along with that.
MR. CARTER:

Not with consumer-type financing, sir.

But,

say, as far as lines of credit that banks will offer you will
normally pay an annual fee and you'll normally pay perhaps other
fees that may be connected with the annual servicing of that
line of credit.
SENATOR KEENE:

Well, certainly with home loans which .....
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MR. CARTER:

Well, with the home loan there would be fees.

There would be commitment fees, normally which are about -- range
from

1~

- 2 percent of the total loan.

I did not feel that we

should get into the fees as far as lending activities were concerned today.

It was just my opinion that we were addressing

bank service charge fees as they relate to checking accounts or
savings accounts for the deposit type accounts.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Mr. Carter, on the Comptroller's decision,

would you explain to the Committee and to me what fees he was
talking about?

I thought they were bank service charges.

Was

it on accounts?
MR. CARTER:

It's my specific understanding it was accounts,

deposit account fees.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

And that's what he calls, "bank service

charges."
MR. CARTER:

Yes ma'am.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
MR. CARTER:

Was just on the accounts.

Yes ma'am.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

That's my interpretation.

Okay.

Questions?

Senator Robbins?

Excuse me, Senator Keene hasn't finished.
SENATOR KEENE:
I don't understand.

Yeah, I hadn't quite yielded the floor.
That's a whole area of consumer interaction

that's of major importance and it isn't being addressed today,
and I think it ought to be addressed, because I think consumers
are getting increasingly confused by the various sorts of charges
that are imposed in connection with the provision of loans.
SENATOR ROBBINS:

But Barry, might we not confuse them more
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by trying to in the same hearing deal with loan fees, which are
really a form of charge for -- an interest cost on the money as
compared to the service charges which are a fee for services in
conjunction with the depository account?

Generally, when you

get a horne loan, or many other kinds, I'm talking of a horne loan,
you pay a point fee, and let's say the fee is -- you either pay
a fee of one point and the interest rate is -

just to pick a

number on a variable figure -- perhaps 12% and then if you wanted
to you have the alternative frequently of paying perhaps 11-3/4%
and then paying an additional point fee which becomes then a two
point fee, but the fe.e s in that case are related to the cost of
money and are figured into the various computations on the cost
of money, whereas service charges in conjunction with a checking
account are a fee for maintaining the account.

My understanding

was that the Comptroller of the Currency was zeroing in on with
respect to the question of depository fees, because there was the
question of what's the --various questions --what's the cost
of the service? what's the fee? what's the impact on the consumer?
SENATOR KEENE:

I don't believe that's correct.

There

are
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
~R.

CARTER:

Senator Keene

Senator, may I make a comment?

SENATOR KEENE:

I'd like to respond to that for a moment.

You have the interest
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

(someone asking a question - inaudible)
He was asked to comment on bank service

charges and the question now corning from Senator Keene is whether
or not that would also be considered service charges for servicing
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a loan.

Is that right?

SENATOR KEENE:

You have the cost of money that is reflected

in the interest rate, perhaps it's reflected in points.

I don't

know whether it is or whether that's a service charge by banks.
In addition to that, at least with home loans, you get an additional service charge that can amount to

hundreds and if not

thousands of dollars that is of concern to consumers.

It certainly

is of concern to me and if I'm confused, there's a lot of consumers
out there that are confused, and I think that that issue
to be addressed at some point.

oug~t

If this is not the appropriate

hearing time, then maybe at some other time, but it is a

ban~<

service charge in my judgment.
CHAIRWOHAN VUICH:
MR. CARTER:

Would you like to reply,

Yes ma'am.

~tr.

Carter?

We were informed that we would

address primarily the decision, or the ruling, made by the Comptroller of the Currency, which specifically is directed to deposit
account service charges, so this is how our testimony reads.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Now, Mr. Carter, that decision that was

made by the Comptroller, which would prevent the State of california from passing any laws concerning limiting service charges,
would you interpret that decision to also include service charges
as we, or Senator Keene, indicated might be construed as loan
service charges?
MR. CARTER:

No ma'am, not at all.

It's only reflective

of deposit account service charges.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
Thank you.

Deposit service charges.

Senator Carpenter had a question?
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All right.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

Well, .'1adame Chairman 1 as I look around

this committee room, I don't think there's anybody on this Committee that would be supportive of an effort in California to
control or to regulate service charges.

I think the issue before

us is the federal decision to usurp this area of responsibility
and to take that area away from the California Superintendent of
Banks.

That's the issue that I see.

So the magnitude of these

service charges is more or less irrelevant to that issue and what's
your feeling about that?
MR. CARTER:

Well, let me reply by stating that the State

Banking Department does not regulate the fees.
SENATOR CARPENTER:
MR. CARTER:

The free marketplace does that.

SENATOR CARPENTER:
MR. CARTER:

Correct.

And we're not going to let you.

That is the Legislature and the courts' respon-

sibility in that area.

As far as Mr. Conover's ruling is concerned,

as I've indicated, the specific issue, I feel, is state determination, or state's rights, and I don't feel that any state should
be preempted on the rights that they actually have and this is
also the feeling of the Conference of State Bank Supervisors.
SENATOR CARPENTER:

So the issue becomes what can we . do

about it.
CHAim·mr-mN VUICH:
California?

And how does that decision affect

Did I hear you mentioning in your remarks that

it was a departure from the usual practice by federal agencies
that there wasn't any opportunity for public comments, that this
decision was made by the Comptroller
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wit~out

any input from anyone?

HR. CARTER:

Yes ma'am, and that is of major concern.

SENA':rOR CARPENTER:

Isn't that unusual in terms of their

normal process?
MR. CARTER:

I don't know of any other rule-making procedures

that's been done without comment, without public comment.

Now,

I can't address that because I have no knowledge in that area.
The only knowledge I have is the recent Comptroller of the Currency
ruling on that.
SENATOR CARPENTER:

In California we're gradually convincing

the Executive Branch that there is a Legislature and maybe it's
time that the Congress convince the Federal Executive Branch of
that same fact.
MR. CARTER:

Well, I feel that we should be very strong on

our state rights issues because this is something that each state
does deserve.
CHAIRvlOHAN VUICH:
SENATOR BEVERLY:

All right, thank you.

Senator Beverly.

Senator Carpenter just made the comment

there's nobody here on the Committee that's suggesting, or would
suggest, or support, the regulation of fees.
right, although I do want to air one gripe.

I think that's
It really isn't a

banking concern, it was a savings and loan, I think, but when one
of my grandchildren was born I opened a little account for Benny
and, you know, if I get horne from Frank Fats at night and I've
got a quarter left, which isn't very often, but I put it in a bank,
and the account was under $100 and they were penalizing me for
maintaining that little account.

They were charging fees and I

had to get over a certain amount, I don't know what it was, and
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it just griped me.

It seemed we were working against the thrift

system, or the instruction, the education, of our young in saving
and that area of fees gripes me.

I'm not about to put in a bill,

I'm not a .... I . remember Alan Sieroty used to put in legislation
to require interest to be paid on Christmas card accounts,
Christmas Club accounts, and that was a traditional battle we
went through every year ••. bqt I have that concern, I just wanted
to voice it, Mr. Carter.
MR. CARTER:

Thank yeu, sir.

CHAIRN0!·1AN VUICH:
SENATOR TORRES:

Senator Torres.
Thank you, Madame Chairperson and members

for allowing me to speak after each and everyone of you have had
your opportunity to ask questions.
Mr. Carter, you've indicated to us that the Comptroller's
decision has no effect on California at all.
M-~.

C~RTER:

Not at this present time.

SENATOR TORRES:

And what your concern is that state rights

and state determination ought to be the principle here as articulated by the State Banking Supervisors Association of which you
are a member of the board.
MR. CARTER:

That's correct, sir.

SENATOR TORRES:

If fees were to become excessive, apart

from Benny's piggybank account, would you move to begin to curtail those kinds of excessive accounts?
charging $6 on a $106 unemployment check?

I mean, especially
That doesn't seem to

be quite fair.
MR. CARTER:

Well that is from checkcashers.
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This is not

financial institutions, banks or savings and loan associations.
These are the check cashers that you see -they're in storefronts
or other businesses that are cashing checks for individuals.
SENATOR TORRES:

Yes, but if fees were to become excessive

by banks or savings and loan institutions, would you move to ask
them to curb those excessive fees?
HR. CARTER:

Ne do not have the ability to do that.

We

are a regulator.
SENATOR TORRES:

~~ould

you come to the Legislature and point

out to the Legislature that these institutions are ·being a little
bit excessive in terms of the fees that they might be charging?

I'm. CARTER:

Nell, that would be our responsibility through

our examination process.
SENATOR TORRES:'

.r.m.

CARTER:

you exercise that responsibility?

Yes sir, we would.

SENATOR TORRES:
sive?

~·lould

And what in your opinion would be exces-

What variables \vould be used to determine excessiveness?
HR. CARTER:

I think the marketplace should determine that,

Senator.
SENATOR TORRES:

Well, wait a minute.

I just asked if you

would move in where you felt it's your responsibility to review
the fees and when I asked if, in fact, your review would determine
excessive fees, it

wo~ld

be your responsibility to speak out on

those excessive fees by your review, but the rr.arketplace would
determine what you would do?
t1R.

fees.

CARTER:

Each bank is required to disclose all of their

Some banks are a little bit higher than other banks,
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primarily because they may not want certain customers - they may
not want to attract certain customers in their institutions - and
those banks, perhaps their fees may be higher than normal, but
in the survey that we conducted, the highest fee that we carne up
with was a $10-a-rnonth fee.
SENATOR TORRES:

So in other words, no matter how excessive

a fee might be, you would never move against it.
MR~

CARTER:

Well, I think I would certainly report fees

that, say, maybe $100 a month for being able to have

a checking

account.
SENATOR TORRES:

So you would do what the Health Facilities

Commission does now -- report the various hospitals and what they
charge per day and let the Legislature decide whether we should
move against those excessive participants.
MR. CARTER:

Yes, because we, being a regulator, we could

not move against a bank as far as service charges are concerned.
That is up to the Legislature and the courts.
SENATOR TORRES:

But you would still move with some of us

who believe that the Comptroller's decision ought to be overturned.
MR. CARTER:

I personally would, yes sir.

SENATOR TORRES:
CHAIRWOI~1

Thank you, · r1adarne Chairperson.

VUICH:

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Senator Boatwright?
The Comptroller of the Currency's

decision preempts the field of service charges on deposit accounts.
There is no prohibition in that decision, however, that prohibits
a state from requiring disclosure to the public, or to potential
customers, or to customers of service charges, is there?
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r1R. CARTER:

T~ere

is law that banks must disclose their

charges to the public.
SENATOR

BOATW~IGHT:

HR. CARTER:

That's state law.

Yes sir.

SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

All right.

So, can you say that all

the banks do, in a straightfoward manner, disclose their service
charges on deposit accounts?
MR. CARTER:

That's correct, sir.

SENATOR BOATl'lRIGHT:
in?

~ihat

Yeah, how?

What manner do they do this

do they do to advise their customers, or potential

customers, of service charges?
MR. CARTER:

We have pamphlets -- banks have -- an example

of Bank of America is a 59-page pamphlet disclosing all of the
fees in connection with their deposit accounts.

First Interstate

Bank has a very elaborate
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Okay, but, I guess if I were going in

·to open a checking account and they handed me a 59-page booklet,
I would do like 99% of the people do, I would probably not read
it because I would, one, have to search through to find my particular kind of account to find my particular service charges.
Is there any way, or any regulation, where you go in and you open
an account, such as Senator Beverly did, or someone did for, I
guess, your grandchild? -- I mean, was there really a disclosure
made to those people that they were going to have to pay a service
charge because it would be under $100 or were they simply handed
a 59-page booklet at that time?
!·1R. CARTER:

l-1ost generally it is disclosed.

-26-

I have not

seen a disclosure statement quite as large as this in quite some
time.

The normal banking organizations have disclosure statements

perhaps similar to this, which outlines all the disclosures and
everything where you can read and understand it very easily.
SENATOR BOAT':vRIGHT:

I guess what I'm saying is if you

I

would assume that the teller or someone there when you open an
account knows what the service charge will be, and so you put $15
in, they hand you something, but they don't say, you know, this
applies to

t~is

account, you will be charged a seryice £ee, or

anything, so I guess really they're complying with the law but
the fact that we're here today means that obviously the consumers,
or the public, doesn't feel, or they don't feel like they are
being really informed.

They're handed something, they search

through, and maybe that's where we should focus our attention, is
to make sure that disclosure statements are not only available
but are understandable and applicable to the particular account
that a person's dealing with.
attorney.

I mean, I'm fairly astute, I'm an

I couldn't tell you what the service charges

my various type accounts.

~re

on

I probably was handed a 59-page book-

let, but I can absolutely assure you I didn't search through that.
So maybe that's where some of the difficulty lies.
MR. CARTER:

Well, based on my experience and the examination

procedure that we go through within our Department, I have had
several accounts over a period of years and when I sit down to
open a new account, I'm informed of my monthly service charge -if you keep "X" number of dollars in this account, you will not
be required to pay a service charge, or if you have a return
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item, this is how much it will cost.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
lations, is it?

But that's not required by the regu-

And you're fairly astute with your background.

I guess I'm talking about people like me, you know?
common folk, you know?

Country boy, come west.

Kind of a

So, I guess

what I'm really saying is are you satisfied that the people when
they go in and open accounts are really being told what their
service charges are going to be?
MR. CARTER:

I'm relatively satisfied that they are informed,

that disclosure is made to the customer.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
rates probably, but I
MR. CARTER:

Okay 1 well .....
They're informed as to their interest

.....

Interest rates?

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Yeah.

The interest that they're going

to earn on that savings account when they open it, but I have seen
very few tell me when I open an account as to what the service
charges are on a savings account if there's a minimum balance in
that bank account.
SENATOR BOATWRIGHT:

Maybe

th~t's

something we should focus

our attention on what the other witnesses have -- who have ·
experience in this field.
CHAIRNOP.LAN VUICH:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Thank you.
Any other questions?

Senator Russell?

On a slightly different question, issue,

my concern in this tremendous change in financial institutions
is prompted by my increasing awareness of the blurring of images
between the stock market, retail business, the realtors and so
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forth going into financial institutions and lumping themselves
together.

My concern stems from my understanding that there was

a large corporation, who had not been in the banking business or
in the insurance business, bought an insurance company, used the
cash flow in some fashion of that insurance company for t3eir .
purposes and they got in trouble and there had to be a massive
infusion of funds to keep that insurance company from going belly
up.

Does the fact that there may be the traditional banking

approach that we understood

fo~

so long may be changed by banks

going into the real estate business or other kinds of businesses,
as well as we see stock brokerage houses going into the banking
business and that kind of thing, do you have ·any concern about
the maneuvering _ of the deposit, the money of the people that is
in deposits, into perhaps what might be more risky business
ventures than the traditional type of banking?

Is that an area

of concern in the banking profession today or to you as a regulat0r
of banks?
MR. CARTER:
Senator Russell.

Maybe I can address this in this manner,
We have what we call non-bank banks, which · I

outlined briefly in my testimony.
It's a loophole in the Bank

Holdi~g

They are not regulated at all.
Company Act where a non-bank

bank can actually enter into banking type activities.

Now, on

the other side as far as •...
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Excuse me, give me an example of a non-

bank bank.
MR. CARTER:

Well, say your McMahan stores, your brokerage

houses and a non-bank bank would be one that maybe only made
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deposits or only made loans instead of making deposits and loans.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Can an individual make a deposit in that

kind of an institution like he does in a bank?
MR. CARTER:
SENATO~

That's correct.

RUSSELL:

Are there the same protections for that

individual with his money?
MR. CARTER:

Well, most of them are not regulated.

Lots of

them are not regtilated.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

I presume then that that then puts a

great deal of pressure on the banks to compete with these other
non-bank banks who are not regulated and try to stretch, or
establish. new system of rules which governs their operations.

Is

that true?
MR. CARTER:

Hell, this is what has been happening.

Now

as far as the banking industry entering into other markets, such
as the real estate market, which this Legislature approved for
banks to enter into starting the first of this year, it may be
risky for banks, it may not be risky for banks.

It depends on

how management makes their decision, it depends on the portfolio
mixes that a bank will have and other activities that banks can enter
into.

We are now making regulations on Section 772 authorizing

the banks to invest a certain percentage of their capital into
these type of ventures which should not exceed 25% of capital.
So we think that this is a safeguard.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Banks also would like to get into the

insurance business and maybe there're others.

But as a regulator,

does this proliferation of the banking enterprises create any
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problems for you in overseeing the security of tne banking system
which has been traditionally a cornerstone and foundation of
this country's financial dealings?
MR. CJ.).RTER:
we will.

\'le may experience problems.

We suspect that

BQt I think the banks must have the opportunity to

enter into these type of activities in order to compete equally
in the marketplace with the other financial providers.

We are

gearing up within our Department now to addres3 the new powers
that the banking community will have.

I think that we will be

prepared for it.
SENA~OR

RUSSELL:

Are there ways in which you can evaluate

the use of the funds that are at their disposal to make sure that
there're still the same kinds of security that they now traditionally had beforehand?
MR. CARTER:

Yes, we've built in mechanisms for that.

Say,

on our Section 772, a bank ·must apply to the State Banking Department·to enter into these expanded activities.
· sENATOR RUSSELL:

Does this mean that there will be fewer

dollars available for loans if they're using the available resources for investment in real es·t ate, investments in, say,
insurance companies or something else?
HR. CARTER:

Not necessarily.

Banks are making investments

now under Regulation Y, which are financial type activities, so
I don't feel that this will lower the amount of availability of
funds for lending activities.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Compared to their traditional use of the

dollars that they have available to them?

-31-

It would just seem to

me that if you put in a dollar they can either turn it around in
a loan or they can put it in a real estate transaction.
can't do both with that one dollar.

They

And to the extent that they

put it in real estate, it would seem to me that there should
therefore be less availability in dollars for loans.

Maybe I'm

missing something.
MR. VAN HOECKE:

Their total investment, Senator, is limited

by their capital, so as a consequence -- perhaps we had, say, a
hundred dollars deposited in the bank.

It really would not affect

how much they could invest their capital structure, it would
really restrict their investment potential and not so much the
deposits that are coming into the bank.

So as a consequence,

they would be retricted to·, say, 25% of capital, which is approximately the -- at this moment is their legal lending limit on
secured lending.
than making

So it really wouldn't be much more effective

or much different than making one, say, real

estate loan at 25% of their capital now.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Their capital comes from the sale of stock

and so forth, or what?
MR. VAN HOECKE:

It would be the sale of stock sales and retaine1

earnings.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. VAN HOECKE:

Not from the deposits then.
No.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
SENATOR CARPENTER:

Thank you.
Senator Carpenter.
\'le have read in the Wall Street Journa-l

that as there was consolidation at the national level of the
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regulatory process there's been quite a turf battle between the
Chairman of the Federal Reserve and the FDIC and the Comptroller.
It appears as if one of the ways that these people can retain
power is by expanding their power out to the states·.

Have you

seen any other instances of any of these three attempting to
usurp state prerogatives?
MR. CARTER:

No sir, not to my knowledge.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

Just this one instance from the

Comptroller.

r.m. CARTER:

That's correct.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

I suspect we'll hear something different

from the savings and loan people.
CHAIR~VOU&~

VUICH:

Thank you.

Any other questions from any members?

Senator Keene?
SENATOR KEENE:

If the Comptroller were to suddenly impose

regulations on national banks in California, what would your
response likely be, if any?
MR. CARTER:

Of what type restrictions, Senator?

As the

ruling?
SENATOR KEENE:

Ostensibly consumer protections regulating

service charges.
MR. CARTER:

I think that would be up to the Legislature

and the Administration.

We do not have any authority in our

regulatory authority as far as national banks are concerned.

~7e

can only provide ....
SENATOR

KEE~E:

No, my question is not what would be your

response as to national banks, because the Comptroller would have
-33-

acted as to those national banks.

What would be your response,

if any, as to those banks over which you do have regulatory control

state banks?

r-m. GOULD:
of an issue?

Are you talking about perhaps a parity type

I'm just trying to clarify the question.

SENATOR KEENE:
MR. GOULD:

Yes.

If the Comptroller took action that affected

national banks, what would our action be with respect to state
banks?
SENATOR KEENE:
UR. GOULD:

Urn hmm.

I think, As Mr. Carter stated, that would be an

action that the Legislature would have to take as far as whatever
the powers were that were granted the national banks or restrictions.
~lhat

SENATOR KEENE:

would you recommend to the Legislature?

Or would you feel you had a duty to recommend anything to the
Legislature under those circumstances?
MR. CARTER:

Well, it would depend upqn what the action would

be and the effects of the action, and I think that would dictate
our recommendation to the Administration and the Legislature.
CHAIRHOMAN VUICH:
Any further questions?

Spoken like a le£"islator.
~1r.

(laughter)

Carter, would you mind just moving

down to the end of the table and we'll have the Savings and Loan
Commissioner now?

There might be a few questions that might come

up a little later that we might need you for.
Larry Taggart here?
and Loan?

Please.

Is ltr.

Commissioner of the Department of Savings

Would you introduce yourself?

MR. TAGGART:

Yes, Madame Chair Vuich, Senators, I'm Larry
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Taggart, the Commissioner of Savings and Loan in California.

To

my left is Reagan Kelly, Assistant Savings and Loan Commissioner,
and Sam .fl1or i, the Chief Deputy Savings and Loan Commissioner
for California.
I will make my comments relatively brief.

I believe · the

Superintendent of Banks, Lou Carter, has done a very good job in
presenting, I think, the background with respect to service fees.
Some of the comments that I would have -- the associations that
we are now regulating can be categorized probably into two major
areas -- one is wholesale and one is retail type operation·.
The retail type operations basically are those that have
branch networks, some of them extensive branch networks, throughout the state, take in retail deposits and.lend these out to
customers, or borrowers.

We are seeing a number of associations

which are applying for charters that are, what we would term,
wholesale operations.

These types of institutions are not as

concerned or interested in obtaining and

~arnering

funds from

the retail base except in larger accounts, arid so I think that's
what Senator Beverly was alluding to, that some associations may
not be quite as interested in the smaller retail accounts, finding
them not as profitable, and the maintenance on those accounts is
considerably more expensive on the
are capable of being used.

s~aller

ones per dollars that

So I think we have to keep in mind

that we do have two basic types of operations - retail and whole· ~ale

typesof operations- both on the savings side and also on

the lending side.
Also, with respect to fees, many times the fees, when we're
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talking about disclosure of fees -- and there is a truth in
lending which regulates the disclosure of fees on the lending
side, and there's also, as I understand, truth in savings, which
also requires disclosure of fees on the liability side, or savings
side.

Those fees that are voluntarily paid by depositors and

customers of banks and savings and loans -- that

i~,

:When ·t hey

come in and they make a deposit and there's a disclosure made to
them .--those are what I would consider to be voluntary type fees
and I believe that most of our associations are making adequate
disclosures.
As to involuntary payment of fees, or assessment of fees,
that's where I would be concerned that --where people really
didn't know that a fee was to be assessed, it was assessed after
the fact, maybe after a loan had been on the books for 15 or 20
years and all of a sudden there was a fee that they hadn't understood.

That's generally where we receive most of our complaints.
I have here some tables of some of our associations, just

as a sample, which discloses the fees and the types of checking
accounts that you can. open and how the fees are to be assessed
and certainly you can read those and there's more available if
you'd like.
t~ith

respect to fees, if you take generally all the fees

that are charged by associations, go into.the general operating
fund.

These fees, and I have reiterated this over the years, if

fees are cut out in one area they're going to have to be picked
up in another area.

In other words, a certain amount of profit-

ability is going to have to be maintained for both savings and
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loans and to banks.

And that profitability is going to come

from fees that are assessed and charged customers, or from .interest
rates that are charged on loans.

And if you look at the loan

side and take a look at those various loan fees that are charged,
you'll find a loan set-up fee, typically what you refer to as
"points'' -- those points generally included in the annual percentage rate calculation, an A.P.R., and are generally includable
as interest and it raises the overall interest rate that you're
paying.

But it's called a loan fee and there is a lot of con-

fusion, Senator Keene, I think, discusses adequately.
You also find pre-payment fees.

Pre-payment fees, if you

pay a loan off prior to maturity you'll see a rather substantial
fee generally between 3 and 4 points of the amount of the loan
charged for a premature or a pay-off prior to maturity.
a substantial fee.

You'll find sometimes transfer fees.

you'll find transfer fees.

That's
Usually

If people sell their homes and some-

body else wants to take over the loan, there'll be a transfer
fee.

These fees all go into the general coffers which go toward

the profitability of an association, and where those fees are
legislated out, either on the front end of a loan or on the tail
end of a loan, there're going to have to be made up somewhere.
So if you legislated or you regulated out pre-payment fees, you
would have to probably charge higher loan fees on the front end
of a loan.

Those fees have to be charged to bring up the overall

return on a particular loan.
Because of the fees, associations are able to charge the
borrowers, particularly on home loans, lower interest rates,
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because we do have fees that are charged and if those fees were
not charged then savings and loans would have to probably charge
higher interest rates.

So I think that's important to keep in

mind with respect to loan fees.
We are relatively "new kids on the block" when it comes to
checking accounts.

Checking account

author~ty

and loan associations just three years ago.

came to savings

Associations at that

time, because they were attempting to compete in the marketplace ·
for checking accounts with the commercial banks,· for the most part
did not charge any service fees.

Some associations did but I

would venture to say that the majority did not charge service
fees.
Within the last year or year-and-a-half it has become
apparent that it's no longer profitable to let many accounts go
without service charges and I have a chart here that will depict
the various charges by various savings and loan associations, and
I won't attempt to go over those now because they vary from
association to association.

But it's generally been our feeling

that regulators should stay out of the fee business.

We're not

really there to regulate the fees, that that is an item for the
free marketplace to determine.

Those associations that are managed

effectively, that have good management, basically will probably
have lower overhead charges and probably less service fees.

Those

associations that are unable to maintain their profitability and
probably aren't managed as well will probably charge higher fees.
But this is for an association to decide and it's also a very
important competitive tool in the marketplace.
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The customers,

again in this voluntary situation, customers who don't want to
pay very large service fees can shop around the town -- there are
many savings and loans and banks, they say they're on every
corner now -- can readily find that association which will have
lower fees and if that's what they're
where they should shop.

interes~ed

in then that's

Again, we feel that comoetition in the

free marketplace should dictate what the fees will be and not
the regulators.
If I may digress a little bit, if you take a look at the
1970s era, we had a very stable source of funds, both in the
banks and the savings and loan industry.

And as a result, monies

were taken in typically at 6% or 7% cost of funds and could be
lended out with a two-point spread.
out at 8% or 9%.

That is, you'd lend the money

And for a 5 or 6 year period during the '70s

that was maintained very readily and generally you didn't have
to charge fees.

You could pretty well determine very accurately

what your profits were going to be.

However, in 1978 and 1979

were the advent of the T. bill accounts and with the disintermediation we saw, as a result of the money market funds, the
sources of funds became an extremely volatile subject.

No lonqer

could savings and loan associations, nor banks, really calculate
that precisely what their profitability was going to be.
became much more critical.

Fees

You couldn't really maintain your

spread like you could in the early 1970s, and for the last 3 or
4 years, financial institutions have determined that the fee
source of income is a very important part of their income.
ticu l arly with

r~spect

to loan fees.
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Par-

Loan fees are a very, very

substantial part of savings and loans operations today.
You find many savings and loans today in what we would
consider to be a mortgage banking operation.

That is, a $200

million association may turn over a billion dollars worth of
loans a year.
market.

They sell most of their loans off into secondary

The thing that they're primarily interested in are the

fees, the loan fees, and that fee income will support their
operation and enable them to provide services to consumers in
other areas.

That seems to be the trend today.

It's very diffi-

cult to intervene from a regulator standpoint and to say.that you
will charge one-point loan fee or a three-point loan fee on this
particular type of loan and they generally will resent any intervention.
There are instances on loan fees that will go anywhere from
one point on origination of a loan, probably up to ten points.
I think if you recall back in the 1970s, early 1970s, many
mortgage companies were charging 10% interest and 10% loan fees
for placing the loan on the books, and of course, that became -that was in an attempt to preclude any usury violations at that
time.

All the usury limitations have been overruled by federal

law so now we aren't concerned in California with respect to
usury limita'tions on normal types of mortgage lending operations.
But fees were exorbitant at that particular period of time.
Again, we see still in this particular economy tremendous
volatility in funds.

The acquisition of funds is very expensive

and the maintenance of accounts to keep those funds has become
increasingly more expensive.
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- I would like to address the issue with respect to preemption,
federal preemption, for a moment if I may.

We have had a little

difficulty here in the last six months with respect to the state's
rights issue versus federal rights.

We work very closely with

the Federal Home Loan Bank, both in San Francisco .and the Bank
Board back in Washington, and of course, all the· associations in
California are currently insured by FSLIC -- the Federal Savings
and Loan Insurance Corporation.

More recently, they have had a

lot of concern with the number of associations that have filed
for charter in California.

Right now we are currently processing

approximately 213 applications for new charters in California.
We currently have approximately 120 associations on line.

They

were overwhelmed by that number, as I was overwhelmed by that
number, and they have implemented some regulations in.an effort
to ensure the safety and soundness of those associations, notwithstanding the fact that the State· of California has also implemented regulations which nearly parallel the federal regulations,
but we came out of the regulations probably two to three months
earlier.

And it seems that the situation is becoming more . serious.

I don't believe Congress really provided for the preemption
of state chartered savings and loans in the manner of which has
been regulated in the last three months.

The Federal Home Loan

Bank, through the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation,
has imposed these regulations, limiting the investment authority
of California state chartered savings and loan associations.
Now, at this particular time
alternative.

~e

have had no recourse, we have no

We have been exploring the possibility of possibly
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establishing a state chartered deposit -- or a state depository
insurance program merely as an alternative in the event that we
can't iron out our differences with the federal side.

But it

has become an increasing problem and I applaud you for your
awareness of the fact that there has been intervention, and that
you recognize that.

I'm really never t90 sure how far the Legis-

lature is concerned about intervention into the state arena
and allowing our Superintendents to regulate our own associations.
But we are aware of that and have been confronted with that for
the last 4 or 5 months and are working on it.
I would now like to entertain any questions that you might
have.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Senator Carpenter has a question.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

Mr. Taggart, you seem to sound as if

you support competition in the marketplace for playing an important
role in the regulatory process.
MR. TAGGART:

Yes, Senator.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

In that context, what FSLIC has done to

your regulatory authority seems rather devastating.
MR. TAGGART:
back in November.

It is.

I think we gave them a little bit

They have restricted the new charters.

actually have another kind of institution now.

We

We have the ones

that carne under law prior to November, 1983, and the new charters
that have come on since that time, and there's a restriction,
there's a 10% limitation on real estate investrnentsandservice
corporation activity for

(word inaudible) charters.

California

state law says that they can invest up to 100% of their assets
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in their service corporation.
SENATOR CARPENTER:

Now that's a substantial difference.

Do you feel that FSLIC is better quali-

fied to determine who should get a charter in California than
your Department?
J1.1R. TAGGART:

Of course not, sir.

SENATOR CARPENTER:

~fuen

do you intend to come before this

Committee with recommendations to restore the integrity of your
Department to make these kinds of decisions?
r-1R. TAGGART:"

We are currently attempting to draft a bill

which will pe introduced probably this spring with respect to
an alternative.
SENATOR CARPENTER:
CHAIR~v01·1AN

VUICH:

Thank you.
Any other questions from any members?

Senator Keene?
SENATOR KEENE:

You talked about the fact that you received

complaints on after-the-fact fees.

What regulations, if any,

have you promulgated to deal with those?
MR. TAGGART:

The problem, I believe, Senator, has been

with 'the disclosure of those fees.

They primarily are going to

be concerned with either a long-term savings deposit, because
people forget during the interim, or a loan which has been

on

the

books for 10 or 15 years, and they come back in and they can't
recall what was disclosed to them at the time other than what is
in writing under their truth in lending disclosure.

And there

has been a great deal of confusion during the 1970s because the
regulations and laws change so dramatically.

You know, every year,

every six months the law is changed with respect to the fees
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charged.

Even working within an association it was difficult to

determine what the fees were pecause they were changing so rapidly.
From a regulation standpoint, what we do when there are complaints,
we just generally handle those complaints and attempt to have the
borrower reconcile it with the association.

We haven't really

implemented any regulations to try to deal with that.

We come

under the federal disclosure laws and associations must comply
with those.
SENATOR KEENE:

Let me give you a hypothetical.

suppose that someone deposits

-~

Let's

an elderly person deposits a

large sum of money in an account with an int·e rest rate that's
assured if the deposit is retained for a three-year period.
Eighteen months have passed and some additional fee for managing
that account is imposed.
MR. TAGGART:

What do you do about that?

In that particular instance, if it had not

been disclosed and it was an improper fee, we would intervene
and we •....
SENATOR KEENE:
MR. TAGGART:

But is it improper?

Is it illegal?

In their particular hypothetical, if that

.

was a condition of the account that a fee would be imposed for
premature withdrawal, then it would be legal.
SENATOR KEENE:
MR. TAGGART:
SENATOR KEENE:

Not disclosed.
It was not disclosed at all .....
No.

MR. TAGGART: .•... but it was a condition of the account.
SENATOR KEENE:
MR. TAGGART:

After the fact.
Yes sir.

Then you get into an interesting
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legal situation attempting to prove whether or not it had been
discloseo.

If it, in fact, had not been disclosed and the borrower's

totally unaware of it, the borrower would have recourse through
the courts and through their own particular legal remedy.

{•le

would probably intervene and discuss on more of an informal basis
the impropriety of assessing the fee.
SENATOR KEENE:

On what theory would they have recourse

in the courts and who is going to go to court over something like
that?

{vhat individual would go to court over something like that

and should not that individual instead have the protection of
government, it not being a case that the marketplace would take
care of?

The

m~rketplace

doesn't take care of everything and

this would be ·an example of something that the marketplace doesn't
take care of and we say, yes, a person can go to court but as a
practical matter most people would not.
MR. TAGGART:

Yeah, legally it would be by way of contract

law but, Sam, I believe, wouldn't in that instance where we have
conducted an informal hearing?
MR. MORI:

Well, we don't have to do a hearing but I think

there are certain leverages that the Department uses oftentimes
to get the association to look at it the other way.
MR. TAGGART:

If there have been a series of complaints

with respect to the operation of an association, we would become
very concerned as a regulator and look into the operation and
so forth.

Most associations are very concerned about their

integrity within the marketplace and they attempt to resolve, you
know, specific instances themselves.
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But where we find a number

of complaints coming in on the same thing and only for a particular
association, yes, we would intervene.
SENATOR KEENE:

Okay, it sounds like an unnecessarily

rough and tumble kind of process that

invo~ves

your receiving

complaints so you learn of the improper, though not necessarily
illegally imposed fee, you then ·attempt to get voluntary compliance with what is ethically appropriate under the circumstances
from the savings and loan institution, and you usually succeed,
but it seems to me they shouldn't be able to do it if it's not
disclosed in advance and that either you ought to promulgate rules
or we ought to pass a law if indeed it is a problem and you're
g~tting

complaints about it,

and~

suspect you are, because I've

heard of situations that fit into that category.
MR. TAGGART:

Yeah.

You know, ·we're dealing with any

number of branches for 120 associations with any number of tellers
in those branches and it's, you know, occasionally yes, some fees
might possibly be improperly charged.

But generally when it comes

to the attention of the savings and loan usually it's resolved.
Very rarely does it need to go on.
would object to fees.

There are people still that

I mean, people, you know, really don't

like fees and they will object to them.
SENATOR KEENE:

No, but if it's something that's imposed

after the fact it seems to me if it hasn't been disclosed in
advance then it's unfair and probably ought to be illegal.
MR. TAGGART:
SENATOR KEENE:

I agree.
One other point.

I don't take exception

to your suggestion that the marketplace is a good way of assuring
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that savings and loans don't take more than they need, which
includes reasonable profits and the cost of operation and all of
that.

The market mechanism may do a good job of that.

But I

take it also that the market mechanism operates on the assumption
that a consumer either is informed or has the opportunity to be
informed.

Now, the reason I raised the earlier question about

loan fees was that I'm not sure consumers have the opportunity
to make those comparisons, not because of a lack of disclosure,
but because the manner in which savings and loans and some other
financial institutions recover their operating costs and their
reasonable profits is so varied that you can no longer say it's
you're no longer comparing apples and apples, you're comparing
lots of things.

If, for example, they recover some portion of

those costs and reasonable profits through the level of the interest
rate, that's one way.

So you see these interest rates advertised

but then you've got to go to the next step and you have to look
at points and then you go to the next step and you have to look
at additional fees that are charged on top of that and then you
have to go to the next step and look at, with the variable rates
at least, whether they can go up and down five or six or seven
percent or not, or only two percent or three percent, and how
much per year and all the rest.

So what I'm saying is that the

consumer opportunity to compare is what is being lost ·and I speak
from a little bit of personal experience, too, difficulty in
trying to figure out which is reasonable or which is more reasonable or which is the best ·of those.
~1R.

TAGGART:

What could be done about that?

In the spirit of deregulation, which we have
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seen for the last two years, there are a myriad of various instruments that are being used and it's not only very confusing to
the public, generally, it's also very confusing I think to the
savings and loan personnel and I'm sure banking as well.

I re-

call back in the early 1970s if you took a look at . a typical note
in a trust deed, you know, to secure a loan, you typically might
see one for a residence, one for a commercial piece of property
and maybe one for all land, unproved land, maybe three or four.
Today you'll probably find an association that·'ll have probably
15 to 20 various notes, deeds of trust, all kinds of pre-payment
fees and notes.

It's virtually impossible unless you or an

attorney accompanying you reads all of the documentation under
the disclosure.
same is

tru~,

It is a very complicated business today.

The

I think, on the liability side with the types of

accounts, the numbers of accounts, the penalities that are charged,
the interest calculations -- it is a difficult and a very complicated business.
There are those consumers and people that are very well
informed.

They have made themselves well informed.

It's not

because they've been spoon fed by the particular financial institution.

They go around, they shop, they'll come in. with a matrix

and they'll know exactly what everybody's charging and it's
amazing.

On the other hand, there are those that would refuse

to be informed.

You can tell them exactly what it is

bu~

they

don't care, they just want to open the account and that's unfortunate.

Many times, you know, I, in a

I would be that way too.

~aphazardly

and fast way,

I'll just want to open something, I'll
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find out later, you know, what the real terms were and I become
rather excited about it, but it was my own fault.

For those

associations that are attempting to cover up because they're
embarrassed about their fees, that's a different situation and
we attempt to regulate that out.

But I don't know how we would

regulate unless \..re boiled everything back down into its simplest
terms and had just one note and one deed of trust and one type
b~t

of savings instrument,

in the spirit of deregulation, I don't

think that's possible today.
SENATOR KEENE:

I agree with the spirit of deregulation

and supported the legislation that brought deregulation in.

I

wonder if in the number of instruments that have been created
and the variations on those instruments, whether the consumer
has not lost an opportunity to make comparisons, and in doing so,
whether the market mechanism has not been effectively defeated
as a means of keeping those costs down.

Because to the extent

that the consumer is not making informed choices based on understandable comparisons, then the marketplace is not working and
those costs will not be kept at an appropriate level it seems to
me and consumers will, I think, increasingly be complaining about
it.

So maybe the pendulum has swung a bit too far, I don't know.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Any other questions from any members?

I had a question, Mr. Taggart.

You were saying that in the past

there were a number of savings and loans who were not charging
for certain accounts - service fees - and now they are, or they've
started charging fees in the last year or so.

Do you know, or

do you have any knowledge how they notified those customers that
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there would be fees when, in fact, there hadn't been in the past?
For example, the savings account that Senator Beverly was speaking
of for his grandson?

That would have been a free account

t~at

would be an incentive to save and all of a sudden there are service charges on a savings account and where is the incentive to
save if they're going to charge you for that account?

When do

they notify the customer that there is a change?
MR. TAGGART:

Mr. Kelly had been intimately involved with

the savings and loan association, I believe he was in the legal
department at that time--of Savinqs and Loan--at the time these
changes occurred so I would defer to him.
MR. KELLY: · Senator, as Larry

rnentio~ed

earlier, and as you

restated, when savings and loans initially began to compete in
the marketplace in the area of checking accounts, certainly in
order to attract and compete with banks in an area that was new
to savings and loans, the products were priced in a manner, I
think, that made them much less difficult to maintain, either
free or certainly low maintenance balances under which people
could maintain their checking accounts without service charge.
After the initial period in which the savings and loans,
I think, got a taste of the expense of maintaining accounts of
this sort and suddenly realized that it was not practical to
allow and to service these accounts without some kind of service
charge being imposed on our customers, the low balance accounts,
especially, were the ones that were relatively more expensive
to maintain than were the accounts in which balances, larger
balances were maintained.

The program that I was personally
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familiar with, the service charge structure was worked out by a
survey of the marketplace, banks and savings and loans, as to
what they were charging for particular types of accounts.

A

committee was set up to analyze that data and then the as.sociation
decided to impose service charges, notifications were sent out
CHAIRWO~ffiN

VUICH:

Notifications were sent out by all of

them?
MR. KELLY:

Yes, these were 30 to 45 days in advance of

imposition of any of the charges, and then at that time, opportunities were given if people wanted to consolidate accounts,
which I believe was part of the reason behind it.

We wanted to

eliminate some of the smaller accounts, as a number of people
maintained one, two and three accounts with $100 or $150 in them,
where it would be more profitable for an association to have a
customer maintain one account with $450 in it, let's say, but the
notifications were mailed and there was quite a bit of flack
received, in that they felt that the service charges were unfair
in some instances.
CHAIRWDr·1AN VUICH:

If they, in fact, did mail those notices,

that was left up to them to do, right?
~1R.

KELLY:

Exactly.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

There is no regulation on the state

level where we follow through to make certain that the consumers
are notified there will be fees after, in fact, there had not
been fees for a number of years.
l-1R. KELLY:

~·lell,

I think the truth in savings laws do

provide, since a savings account is an enforceable contract, and
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if the terms of that contract are altered, then the requirement

is made that in order for that contract to be enforceable is that
a disclosur·e of the change and the terms would have to be made.
CHAIR~im1AN

VUICH:

Would there have to be more of a dis-

closure than just to show a deduction on that savings account
on the next statement that a customer receives?
~R.

KELLY:

I would think so, yes.

CHAIRWOr1AN VUICH:
!-lR.

KELLY:

That wouldn't be considered a disclosure.

No, I don't think that would be disclosure at

all.
CHAIRW0~1AN

questions?

VUICH:

All right.

Thank you.

Any other

All right, we'll move along on our agenda then.

you very much.

Thank

You can all step back.

We will hear from the financial institutions now.

We have

L. Robert Connelly and Mr. George R. Cook.
~R.

COOK:

Madame Chair and members, my name is George Cook

and I represent the California Bankers Association, which is the
statewide trade organization for California's commercial banking
industry.
With me today, and our principal spokesman today, is Bob
Connelly.

~r.

Connelly is Senior Vice President at Union Bank

and he also is the Chairman of our Operations Committee.
Since the witnesses just prior to me, primarily Mr. Carter
and

~..r.

Taggart, have already covered much of what I was going

to touch on just by way of introduction, I don't want to be redundant in light of the hour, but I would like to highlight a
couple of things that they said which are important for us.
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First of all, bank fees, or savings and loan fees, are
really part of an overall equation and that equation deals with
the deregulation of financial institutions and the rest of the
equation has to do with expanded powers.

Now, before you today

are not the other issues in that total equation.

You're simply

looking at bank service charges, and although Senator Keene has
raised the question of loan fees and loan origination fees, it
was our understanding, based on your press release, Senator Vuich,
and with the contact with Mr. Miller, the Consultant, that
essentially what you were dealing with were the so-called deposit
account type fees and so on, so we didn't really come prepared
today to go in ••...
CHAIRWO~urn

VUICH:

Bank service charges was what the topic

Right.

However, if you want more information

was ...•
MR. COOK:

on that we can provide that at another time.
I'd like to reemphasize the point that

~oir.

Carter made and

that was that fees charged by banks are essentially a business
decision by the management of the bank and those fees primarily
are based on marketplace forces.

And increasingly, since 1980,

with the deregulation of the rates that banks and savings and
loans may pay their depositors, there is a narrowing of the spread.
The spread in the business is the difference between the cost of
funds to the bank, or the savings and loan, and the rate which
they charge to the borrower.

And that spread has been narrowing

with the deregulation of rates that financial institutions may
pay their de9ositors.

Nobody here today has suggested that
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ceilings be replaced on the rates that financial institutions
pay their depositors, so that increasingly, and you will see this
in the very near future, money market rates will be .Paid on
virtually all types of deposits.

There may be some exceptions

to that, butthat's the general direction.

So with this narrowing

of the spread, banks are being forced to look to non-interest
sources of income and there are three general areas that we can
look to:

*

Increasing fees -- that's what you're talking about
here today;

*

Reducing our costs and automating, and that's going on;
and

*

The ability to offer new products and services.

In 1982 the Legislature passed and the Governor signed
A.B. 3469 which authorized state-chartered banks in California
and savings and loan associations substantial new powers.

But

the bank fee area is something that has come under increasing
spotlight.

I wish Senator Boatwright was back with us because

he asked about the disclosure of bank fees.
I had one of my staff members this morning go out in a
two-block radius of the Capitol and obtain from four banks - two
of them national banks, two of them state-chartered banks; two
of them are large banks, two of them are small banks - the disclosure statements that are available to consumers on kiosks that
are located in the lobbies, and if you would have the Sergeant
pass these disclosure statements out, I would certainly appreciate
it.

-54-

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Sergeant, would you please pass those

around to the members of the Committee?
MR. COOK:

And they range from a one-pager to the 59-page

document, which Senator Boatwright alluded to, and anybody is
free to go and shop the disclosure statements, shop the fees and
service charges that banks charge, and that information is readily
available to any customer, or consumer, that walks into a lobby.
Unless you have some questions .....
CHAIR\'10?-1AN VUICH:

Do most of those banks, Mr. Cook, do

most of those banks, when someone opens an account, do they hand
the customer one of these with their book?
MR. COOK:

Yes, along with other information.

CHAIR\·JOMAN:

At the time they're making a decision as to

what kind of an account they're opening up?
MR. COOK:

Sure.

And then if the customer, as Senator

Boatwright indicated, throws the disclosure statement away, anytime they walk into the bank they can pick up another .one.
readily available.

They're

If you want you can pick up the phone and call

the bank and they'll mail you one, or however you want to do it.
But those disclosure statements are there and they are updated
all the time.
CHAIRT•JOMAN VUICH:

What you're saying is they are avail-

able, they are handed to the customer, they are told to the
customer

the contents of these disclosure statements?

And

if a customer chooses not to read one that it's not the responsibility of the bank.
l-1R.

COOK:

Yes.
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CHAIRWOM&~

VUICH:

All right.

Thank you.

Senator Torres

has a question.
SENATOR TORRES:

Mr. Cook, the issue that the Superintendent

of Banks raised earlier regarding the Comptroller's decision was
not so much based upon his support of providing regulation for
excessive fees, but rather on his support for the state's right
to determine its own destiny, so to speak.

Would you, as the

Bankers Association, be in favor of overturning the Comptroller's
decision on the basis of supporting California's right to regulate or to legislate where it saw fit?
MR. COOK:

Senator, in response to your question, the

California Bankers Association has not taken any position on
this interpretive ruling by the Comptroller of the Currency, and
I think, frankly, because theComptroller'sregulation, or interpretive ruling, impinges on litigation that is

currentl~,

pending

in the California Supreme Court, I think that's one of the reasons
that we have stayed away from that, and that is the
SENATOR TORRES:
then?
or in

(laughte~)

~'lell,

What are you talking about in the board room

(inaudible)
MR. COOK:

what are you guys saying privately

..•.• Conover, what a great guy, right?

Well, Conover, what a great guy doesn't help

the state-chartered banks in this state and there are 263 of
them.

We have 400 members, 400 commercial banks in California,

give or take a few, and 263 of them are state-chartered banks.
So the Comptroller's ruling does not directly affect them and
they are our members also.
SENATOR TORRES:

Are they arguing that it ought to?

----------------- --------------- -- - --- -
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MR. COOK:

No, the Comptroller is the primary regulatqr

of national banks.
SENATOR TORRES:

No, are they arguing that his decision

ought to govern state banks as well through a state action?
~IR.

COOK:

Well, his regulation can't, Senator Torres.

SENATOR TORRES:
MR. COOK:

No, I understand that.

No, they're not arguing that, no.

sort of a state's rights theory.

Not on any

Our basic position, Senator,

is that there should be no legislation or regulation relating
or regulating or restricting bank fees.
determined in the marketplace.

These fees should be

If you don't· like the fees that

your bank charges you, you should be free to go anyplace you want.
SENATOR TORRES:

That's easier said than done, though,

Mr. Cook, and it's really easy to provide all of us with these
marvelous pamphlets, but it really doesn't help the consumer that
much, and it's easy to say, yes, you can go out and build your
own telephone company, you don't have to subscribe to a telephone
company here in Los Angeles or in Sacramento, go out and get your
own phone and we can get two tin cans and perhaps provide some
limited communication.

But we really are at a loss in terms of

lending institutions, as Mr. Keene well knows, and others, as to
where we can find adequate financing on one occasion or another.
But would you be in favor of the Superintendent of Banks, or the
S&L Superintendent of issuing a comparative list, as does the
California Health Facilities Commission, on hospitals and what
they charge so that a consumer can go to at least a public agency
for disclosure?
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MR. COOK:

Senator, you find these comparative lists in the

real estate section of the Sunday paper on loan fees and loan
origination fees.

The business section of many of our major

daily newspapers in this state publish the
SENATOR TORRES:

So you wouldn't be opposed to the Super-

intendent publishing public
MR. COOK:

~nformation

then.

It's totally unnecessary.

of what exists today.

It would be

duplicat~ve

For anybody who wants to pick up the

Wall Street Journal, the L.A. Times, the San Francisco Chronicle,
the
SENATOR TORRES:

You know, I went through East Los Angeles

the other day and I couldn't find a news stand that sold the
New York Times or the
MR. COOK:

~Tall

Street ,Journal.

I said the L.A. Times.

SENATOR TORRES:

You said the

l~all

Street Journal and New

York Times .....
MR. COOK:

And the Nall Street Journal.

SENATOR TORRES: ..... I couldn't find those in the streets
of East Los Angeles.
MR. COOK:

Senator, there are 4,700 locations in this

state, or 4,700 branches of banks in this state.
how many thousands of savings and loan offices.

I don't know
You add those

with the number of financial •....
SENATOR TORRES:

So your answer is no, you \oTOuld not be in

favor of establishing a list of comparative prices that the
Superintendent would issue periodically to the public.
MR. COOK:

No, I didn't say I was opposed to that, Senator.
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I say that it is duplicative of what already exists.
SENATOR TORRES:

So your answer is no, you would not be

in favor of issuing such a
MR. COOK:

statement~

If it did not already exist then perhaps the

Superintendent should, but it exists so there's no need to do it.
SENATOR TORRES:

~vhat

do you consider an excessive fee?

What would, in your mind, you would interpret as excessive?
MR. COOK:

Senator, I can't answer that question.

no idea what an excessive fee is.

I have

Personally, if I think some-

thing is excessive then I avoid it, or attempt to avoid it.
SENATOR TORRES:

How much do you think it actually costs

to process a return check?
to us?

Do we have that information available

Is your witness going to provide that info to us?
MR. COOK:

Well, Mr. Connelly can answer for himself, but

Senator, I don't think it would be appropriate to respond to that,
that relates to Perdue v. Crocker National Bank, which is pending
in the California Supreme Court.

The very issue of service

charges on return checks and the fact that the plaintiffs believe
that those charges are excessive.
SENATOR TORRES:

Oh.

Well, I'm not asking you to cetermine

whether they are excessive or not.

I'm asking you what are those

charges.
MR. COOK:

I thought that's what you asked me.

SENATOR TORRES:
was excessive.

I asked you that earlier, what you thought

What I'm asking you now is what is the usual --

the actual cost of a return check?
MR. COOK:

Like I said, I can't answer, no sir.
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SENATOR TORRES:

You can't or you aren't capable of

answering or you are limited in answering?
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Senator Torres, I'll let him answer the

question, but I indicated from the very beginning that if it's
any thing that leads to anything that's in litigation in the
Supreme Court that we wouldn't require anybody to answer questions.
Now, I don't know ....
SENATOR TORRES:

Oh, I'm sorry, I didn't realize that that

cost would be in litigation.
CHAIRWOl-11\N VUICH:

The question is bank s .e rvice charges

and are they excessive and that's the question in court at the
present time.
SENATOR TORRES:

Oh,. ·I see, so ....

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Specific charges were made and there's

a claim that they are excessive charges, so if you ask what are
excessive charges or what are charges, how do they determine
the charges, I think would be alluding to the case.

Now, I'm

not an attorney, but I'm ....
SENATOR TORRES:

I'm not asking how much Crocker charges -

I no longer bank with Crocker- but I wanted to know how ....
MR. COOK:
named

Senator, there are a nurnber ' of other banks as

(inaudible)
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

I think what Senator Torres is leading

to is how a bank determines what the service charges should be
on an account for overdrafting an account or returning a check
against insufficient funds or handling of it .

. I think what he's

trying to say is - and if I'm wrong you may correct me - how
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does a bank determine that the charges w111 be $10 or $20 or
that they will not charge anything at all as they had in the past
in many instances ••••.
l1R. COOK:

Mr. Connelly is much better able to answer that

question than I am.
CHAIRl-lOMAN VUICH:
MR. COOK:

ltr.

Who is?

Connelly.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Connelly,

would you take a stab at the answer?
MR.

CO~~ELLY:

Thank you, Madame Chairman.

Would it be

permissible for me to go ahead and review with you the statement
I had prepared and I believe that answer will come out?

If it

doesn't I'd be delighted to address this particular •••••
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

That's fine.

You just go right ahead

and then at the end of your presentation if Senator Torres isn't
satisfied that the answer is in your comments then we'll ask
you again •
.t-IR. CONNELLY:

I believe it is but I '11 be delighted to

expand it.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
HR. CONNELLY:

Certainly, go right ahead.

A number of speakers, and particularly the

Superintendent, have focused on deregulation and its _ impact, and
today I'd like to visit with you from a different perspective.
I'd like you to share with me the free enterprise system and I
would suggest to you that, in fact, banks are part of that system,
too.
The banks are only part of, in fact, the financial services
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industry.

In this case, the Legislature has affected the mar-

kets by first regulation and then deregulation.

Albeit over a

period of some 40 or 50 years, it is an artificial adjustment in
the marketplace itself.
As Mr. Cook started to say a few minutes ago, the prices of
most services of banks are published quite regularly.

Up until

a couple of years ago I lived in the Bay area and weekly the
Chronicle published the service charges of all the banks in that
area.

In fact, they did a weekly phone survey.

But now I live

in the Los Angeles area and there are a number of local newspapers
who do the same thing.
I believe, though, that as part of deregulation, consumers,
meaning you and I, and business people, have a duty, too.

We have

to change and begin to shop for services just like we shop for
groceries, cars or any other thing.
The Senator alluded to telephones · a second ago.

Now, I

don't pretend to compare a bank to the phone company, but I suggest that prior to the deregulation - that is, the break up of
AT&T - . there were a number of new communication services available.
They might have .been called Sprint or other names, they were
operated on satellite networks by RCA, GE and others; in fact,
there were alternatives to part of the communications process.
I believe that same thing is true today in the financial
services industry.

It isn't just banks.

Mr. Cook talked about

the few thousand banks, or offices of banks, in California.

As

a matter of fact, there are over 15,000 commercial banks in the
United States, and honestly, I don't know how many savings and
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loans, credit unions, thrifts, savings banks, private retail
institutions, and others, that offer those services, but I'd be
willing to guess with you there are more than 50,000 institutions
in America offering financial services.
some kind of a franchise.
particular license.

At one point, banks had

Regulation excluded others and gave a

That isn't true today and I think that as

users of those services we have to shop to be sure that we get
the best value.
As previously mentioned, the cost of deposits - that is,
the interest paid by banks - has gone up materially.

In fact,

the rates today virtually float with the money market.

That is,

most of us in this room who have savings, whether it be in a bank
or otherwise, I'm sure are enjoying money market rates . .
none of you learned Senators here have
sitting around collecting dust.
formalization of a change.

5~%

I'm sure

passbook accounts

In fact, deregulation was the

By consent, when the Fed allowed

Merrill Lynch to begin offering his cash management account, you
saw a change in evolution.

Things changed in the way services

were provided.
The Comptroller's ruling appears to exempt national banks
from state law.

I'm not going to comment further on it than

Cook did because I'm not qualified to.

r~.

I would say, however,

that if you would regulate state banks, not the credit unions,
savings and loans, national banks, and all of the other

~yriad

of providers, and please don't exclude people like Sears, then
you're putting your state banks at a material disadvantage.

They

cannot compete effectively in a marketplace where the others are
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free to set services based on market condition and theirs are
sought.
There are many factors that affect price.

This isn't true

of just banking but all free enterprise activities.

These factors

include market strategy, entrance requirements, product grouping,
competition and cost.

Most of these points are specifically

covered in the Comptroller's ruling, but they're all· included in
good business practices.

We wouldn't dream of setting price

based solely on a particular cost.
In the past, most of the banks' earnings have come from
loan income, but with . change, particularly the increasing cost
of funds, non-interest income, or new sources of income, are
increasingly important.

In fact, there was a recent article in

the American Banker which stated that more than 100 banks would
have had a decrease in their net return on equity. had it not been
for new sources of income, fee income.
If we're going to compete effectively in a marketplace,
I believe that we have to allow the market forces themselves to
work and rely on people to choose.

Senator Torres named a par-

ticular bank that he no longer banks with.

That was his choice

and he was able to find a substitute, one that helikedbetter,
or was more price competitive or more particularly
Torres comments in background - inaudible)

(Senator

In

fact, there were things in the past that were free.

There were

loss leaders that banks provided, and again, because of increasing
costs--both in their margins decreasinq, increasinq cost of funds-they may not be able to do that any longer.
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So far in deregulation we've seen a number of banks fail.
I believe, in fact, you're going to see further consolidation,
that if we look ahead five years, as was recently done by the Bank
Administration Institute and Arthur Anderson nationally, that
15,000-odd commercial banks will decline.

Their estimate is to

less than 9,000.
I don't think this suggests that price fixing is in place
at all.

I don't think this suggests that the

sponsive to individual needs.

mark~t

isn't re-

I think, rather, it suggests that

the competition is extraordinarily keen, that even though we've
begun deregulation, we do not have a level playing field.

Those

other non-bank financial intermediaries don't play by the same
rules.

They don't all provide FDIC or FSLIC insurance.

they aren't even all insured.
adequacy ratios.

They don't have to have capital

They aren't supervised.

I'm with Union Bank.

In fact,

Mr. Cook mentioned

Union Bank is one of your largest state-

chartered banks in California.

But we're ·also a member of the

Federal Reserve System and we're also insured by the FDIC.

That

means we have at a minimum three regulatory institutions, groups
or agencies looking over our shoulder.

In addition, we're required

to have outside auditors - one of the large big eight accounting
firms - to check to be sure that our business practices are sound
and that we're doing things appropriately.
I believe that additional regulation will do nothing but
restrict those few state banks in this financial services industry
to render them non-competitive.
CHAIRNO.MA.'I\I VUICH:

Thank you very much.
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MR. CONNELLY:

You're welcome.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Senator Torres, has your question been

answered?
SENATOR TORRES:

No!

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Would you like to restate your question

then?
SENATOR TORRES:

Yes.

Did you say that some banks are

making up their loan losses through higher service charges and
that might be one of the variables that's involved?
MR. CONNELLY:

No sir, I certainly didn't.

I said that

margins are narrowing, that the cost o.f funds has increased
materially and that while profits traditionally have come from
loan interest, with those margins narrowing, they've reduced.
didn't say a thing about loan losses.

I

I said, in fact, they must

make up that loss income through other new sources.

They could

be new products, new services, but they will be fee based as
opposed to interest based.
SENATOR TORRES:

So the disparity between various services

of various lending institutions has a lot to do with, as you
indicated, market strategies, how ·much your advertising agency
charges you, how much you may or may not

spe~d

on radio, TV or

print advertising.
l-1R. CONNELLY:
SENATOR TORRES:

That, among other factors, absolutely.
Do you think the state should have any

concern about the cost of service to consumers?
MR. CONNELLY:

Mr. Torres, do you think the state should

have any concern about the cost of a dozen eggs or a loaf of bread?

- --- --- -- --- - - - - - - -· - -------
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SENATOR TORRES:

Yes, I think we should.

I do.

I'm

asking you ....
MR. CONNELLY:

I don't mean to be disrespectful in the

question, I'm only suggesting that ....
SENATOR TORRES:

No, it was a good question, I answered it.

I'd like an answer for mine now.
MR. CONNELLY:

Okay.

Good.

I think it's important to be

concerned, sure, to ensure that there aren't dishonest or illegal
acts occurring.

I believe that the Superintendent does a very

good job of ensuring and auditing our bank to be sure we don't
do that.
SENATOR TORRES:

Well, I don't want to audit every chicken

in California but I do think that -- that I have concern about
the cost factor and what I am concerned about is uniformity.

I

also want to remove as much red tape as I can, or can be helpful
in doing, for banks and other institutions in this state.

But

I am concerned about the disparity of the rates and I appreciate
the fact that you've been responsive to some, if not all, of the
questions.

Thank you r1adame Chairperson.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
other questions?

All right, thank you.

Are there any

Sehator Keene?

SENATOR KEENE:

One is the after-imposed fees that I spoke

to one of the previous witnesses about.

If you open an account

and the account promises to pay a certain rate of interest if
you keep the funds in for a certain period of time, and then
in the course of that period an additional fee is imposed, is
there anything fair about that and shouldn't we be concerned about
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that?

Isn't that an aspect of consumer protection that perhaps

government ought to be concerned about, because the marketplace
doesn't seem to provide for it?
MR. CONNELLY:

Could I try to understand your question,

please, and just ask you what· you're saying?

Are you suggesting

that a contract for a particular type of deposit, a time deposit,
was made and that that included a specific stated rate of interest?
SENATOR KEENE:
MR. CONNELLY:

That's correct.
And then you're suggesting there's a fee

associated with that and that that fee changed during the time of
the contract?
SENATOR KEENE:

And additional service charge is imposed

during the term of the contract.
r.iR. CONNELLY:
answer it.

Honestly, I'm a little at a loss as to how to

I'm not aware of time deposits. of that type.

CHAIR\\'O.f.'.LAN VUICH:
MR. REYNOLDS:

Yes.

Nould you give us your name, please?
Thank you.

California Bankers Association.

Blair Reynolds for the

Senator, that situation is

already covered under state law for both the banking industry,
savings and loan industry and the credit union industry as well.
At the time that the variable rate deposits came on to the market,
the legislation needed to be changed which required disclosures
with respect to all accounts, fees and charges because of the
aspect of being

ab~e

to vary that rate.

Senator Robbins carried

a bill under the co-sponsorship of the California Bankers Association and the California Savings and Loan League, I believe it
was two or three years ago, which addressed that very issue.
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With - respect to any changes in the account conditions then you
would have to make a disclosure, and I've ·forgotten the number
of days, I could look it up and get that information to you but
I believe it's a minimum of 45, perhaps 60 days, before the
change occurred and before you could impose. any change in that
kind of an account, unless it was on a known index or something
of that nature which was agreed to at the time the account went
in and was an expectation of the account holder.

Similarly with

respect to loan charges, you have a loan contract and as a matter
of contract law you cannot after-the-fact come in and change
the conditions of that loan and impose new fees.

So I believe

that aspect of your question is totally covered by state law
already.
SENATOR KEENE:

What if the 45 to 60 day notice provided

for in the legislation occurs in the middle of a period of time
for which the funds are committed if you receive a certain interest
rate?
MR. REYNOLDS:

You're talking now about a time deposit

which is specifically a three-year certificate of deposit or
something of that nature.

You could not adjust that.

We're

only talking about those demand deposits.
SENATOR KEENE:

And you could not superimpose an additional

fee of any kind?
MR. REYNOLDS:

No sir.

That, again, is a matter of contract

at the time the deposit relationship was entered into.

I will

independently go back and verify all that information and get
the information to your office, but I'm absolutely certain of
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the fact.
SENATOR KEENE:
sponsive.

I appreciate the answer.

It's very re-

Let me ask you about another issue, not necessarily

you but whoever chooses to answer, and that's the whole issue
of loans and particularly home loans which banks are now involved
in as well as savings and loan institutions.
What it looks a little bit like to the consumer is something like this.
commodity.

You say dollars are a commodity like any other

\vell, maybe you didn't say that, but you sort of

compared it to other commodities -- the eggs and the milk and the
bread.

If I want to go out and buy dollars, I can go to the

Los Anqeles Times, if I can find it, and I can here in Sacramento,
and look at what the comparisons are that they offer and what it
looks like is this.

You can buy that money and what it costs

you is two sacks of flour and three goats and seven saddles and
five chickens, and that's one lending institution.

The next

lending institution says it will only cost you one sack of flour,
but four goats, and only six saddles, but it'll cost you ten
chickens.

Now, how in the heck can a consumer deal withthat and

make compar.isons sufficient to keep the market mechanism operating
and choose the most cost effective of the various available modes?
How can a consumer choose today?

I'll put the same question to

the savings and loan institutions.
~R.

REYNOLDS:

Senator, if I may.

a consumer to that would

I suppose my answer as

it would depend on whether I had

more flour or more goats to meet my needs at the moment.
looking at a loan

a~d

If I'm

conditions where I may be looking at a
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variable rate loan with a different interest rate than (word
inaudible) a fixed •• ! may be looking at two points as opposed to
one-and-a-half points, which will require more capital up front
on my part, it's going to matter to what my needs are.

If · my

needs are to keep that payment down at a different rate, then
I may be more inclined to put more money up . front with higher
points but to get a variable rate to go down lower, or somethinq.
~y

options are available and these options weren't even

a few years ago.

availa~le

So it really is to the consumer's bene=it, al-

though confusing, there's no question it's confusing, but if
adequately explained it is to the consumer's benefit to have these
choices and to decide do they have more flour now than goats and
wish to put that in in order to pay =ewer chickens as they go
along in the terms of the loan.

I think it really comes down to

that kind of a consideration.
SENATOR KEENE:

I would submit to you that the disclosure

information that is available does not permit the
make that kind of comparison.

con~umer

to

Now, I don't know what can be done

about that except you might say, well, consumers ought to be
smarter or they ought to do rnore homework or they ought to spend
more time at it, but it is very, very difficult to figure out
the value of an assumable mortgage as opposed to a non-assumable
one and convert that into points or percentages or dollars and
closure fees or whatever the heck it is.
to do that.

There just isn't anyway

Now, I'm not saying that the choices and the different

instruments and the multitude of instruments that are now available cannot best meet certain consumer needs, but
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ther~

are so

many available now and there are so many variables that the
consumer can't figure out which is best suited to his or her needs.
MR. REYNOLDS:

And many times that is true, Senator, and

that is specifically the reason for the loan officer, the real
estate broker and other experts in this area to try and hel9
tailor the needs of that consumer to the type of loan product
that he or she gets.
tions

ca~e

Before these multiple types of instrumenta-

out through the lending communities, the real estate

industry was doing a wide variety of instruments through what we
call creative financing today, and that, too, caused a great deal
of confusion at the time, if you recall.

And I think it's incum-

bent upon all of our industries - the savings and loan, the banking,
the real estate and others in the real estate loan area - to make
sure that that e}tpertise is brought home to the consumer.

You're

correct, it can be a very confusing situation.
SENATOR KEENE:

Okay.

I lay the problem out in front of

you because I think we're going to see a consumer backlash in
this area and I · think the Legislature is going to be called upon
to respond to it at some point.
~R.

please?

CONNELLY:

Senator, could I add to Blair's response,

I can really empathize with you personally because right

now I'm one of those folks out looking for a home loan -- individually, not my bank.
SENATOR KEENE:
!1R. CONNELLY:

Good luck.
And I can't get it from my bank.

From this

confusion, though, has, in essence, sprung a new industry and it's
the loan broker.

Now, what we're doing - my wife and I - is we're
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using · the same paper you are, taking what appears to be the .best
and making

a

lot of phone calls -- 10 or 12 so far.

But ~ began

by using the loan broker as my bench mark and I went to a couple
of loan brokers and I asked the same question and I ended up with
the price for the best loan that broker could offer.

The price

broken down into my current costs, fees up front, what the rate

.

was, whether it was fixed or variable, then I began trying to
beat that by phoning the S&L's principally, and the banks directly
myself.

It isn't super easy, I agree with you, and we all need

totryto improve it, but I do think, as Blair pointed out, between
the real estate brokers who are selling the homes and this new
person in the market, the loan broker, there, in fact, does exist
a lot of help to find our way through.
I'd also suggest, as Blair pointed out, a lot of the loans
today are new and a result of changing marketplace.

I believe that

quite a few will shake out, they will not exist in a few years
because you and I will decide we don't understand for sure what
an 1'apple" loan is, and please don't ask me, I can't explain it,
it's just in the newspaper.

And so, because of that, you and I

are going to reject it and inasmuch as we reject it, it will no
longer be economical to offer.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Along those lines and relating to some

of the questions that Senator Torres asked you earlier, wouldn't
it be difficult to have a list for consumers to check with, with
therateschanging everyday in the various banks?

You know, he

was talking about having a place where there· wouln ..••
SENATOR

TOR~ES:

That's already done in newspapers.
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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

In newspapers, but that doesn't cover all

of them, like a consumer would be interested in knowing what's in
their own areas.

That newspaper doesn't tell me what's available

to me in Dinuba, California or Visalia or any of my little
communities in my distr-ict.

It tells you what's available in Los

Angeles or New York or some of the larger places.

But wouldn't

i~

be difficult to compile a list for consumers to refer to in any one
given area because of the changes on a daily basis of interest
rates and what you have to offer?
MR. CONNELLY:

I don't believe it would be difficult.

I

believe that Mr. Cook said earlier that, at least, in part - but at
least in the major areas where I travel, as well as where I've
lived - in the Los Angeles area, the Bay area, Orange County - that
information is published quite frequently.
There are a number of consumer activist groups who have it
available that you can phone and who will tell -you what different
banks are charging.
does that today.

The Consumers Union in San Francisco, in fact,

I guess, individually, forgetting about banking

for a second, individually, the thing I would resist is that we'd
be just adding cost, we'd be providing information that people
either wouldn't or couldn't use.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
You've very informative
associations.

Okay.

Any question?

Thank you very much.

Now we'll hear from the savings and loan

Mr. Ray Martin, Dave Milton and Mary Sheets.

r·lR. MILTON:

Madame Chair and members, I'm Dave Milton,

representing the California League of Savings Institutions.

--- ___-: 'Z.4 :-: ____ -----

We

represent the state and federally chartered savings and loans
doing business based here in California.
r.~r.

I have with me today

Ray Martin, who is the current Chairman of the California

League and also is President of

Coas~

Savings.

And we also have

with us Mary Sheets, who is Vice President of New Products for
~~erican

Great

~·le
~artin

Federal Savings.

had distributed to you the prepared statement of r1r.

and it basically responds to questions that we received

from your Committee Consultant regarding the question on service
charges.

Rather than go through that in light of the time that

we have already spent on the issue and the comprehensive coverage
you have received, we would like to just respond to any questions
that you may have of our representatives here today.
CHAIRNOHAN VUICH:

Thank you very much, Dave.

Do you have

a prepared statement?
~1R.

MARTIN:

I'll be happy to read it.

CHAIRWOl-1AN VUICH:
MR.

i~RTIN:

Would you, please?

Historically, savings and loan associations were

limited as to the interest rates they could pay for savings deposits.

Costsrelated to maintaining the deposits as well as other

services were absorbed by the institution as a form of "non-price
competition."

Deregulation, as of the Depository Institutions

Deregulation Act of 1980, has caused substantial changes on the
deposit side of savings institution balance sheets.

The sub-

stantial thrust of these changes has been to cause our institutions
to pay market interest rates on these accounts.
of interest rates and the shift of
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payin~

The deregulation

market rates for funds

has caused financial institutions to unbundle their services and
price them separately.

We understand that this Committee will be

considering some of the issues which I'll now address.
~fuy

is it necessary to assess a service charge on a savings

account if the balance drops below a specified amount?
accounts are costly to maintain.

Savings

The Federal Reserve Functional

cost Analysis Report for 1982 indicated an average annual expense
per account to be over $42.

The balance in an account must be

sufficient to cover this cost and earn a reasonable return.

Since

low balance savings accounts comprise approximately 40% of our
institutions' passbook type accounts, a service charge is justified.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

On that point, if I might interrupt,

being as we're on that one topic right now, what you're really
saying is that savings and loans associations are no longer enticing
or wanting to be an incentive to save money unless they go over
a certain amount.

They're not looking for small accounts.

They'd

just as soon not have them.
MR. MARTIN:

Let me be as specific as I can.

ticular institution, we have 550,000 accounts.

In my par-

In examining this

recently, as we're looking at all of our operating expenses, we
discovered that we have 100,000 accounts with less than $200 on
balance, an average balance, representing $6 million.
a much too costly operation to maintain.

That is

Most of these accounts

customers have forgotten about or didn't even realize were in
existence.

We're writing to the customers informing them that

if they have other accounts to consolidate, if they would increase
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their minimum balances up to $200 we'll continue to maintain and
At $200 we're not making any kind of pro-

service the accounts.

fit on that but at below $200 is a starting point we just cannot
justify continuing the relationship.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

So what I said, in fact, is true, that

you're discouraging them to keep the account there if they can't
maintain a balance of "X" number of dollars.
!'1R. MARTIN:

That's correct.

We will charge a dollar a

month as a service charge which will not cover the total expense
that it costs us to operate and maintain those accounts but try
to influence them to increase the balance or consolidate it with
another account.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

So what we're really doing is losing that

little incentive to the people who can't afford to save a large
amount to not open an account until they have $200 or more.
MR. MARTIN:

~'lell,

it's a matter of degree.

versus what used to be in the business a $5
minimum, let's say 10 or 15 years ago.
you are correct in your observation.

minim~m

$200 today
or a $10

So my answer to you is
But we don't believe that

$200 is an excessive amount.
MS. SHEETS:

Could I also add one thing to that?

CHAIR'VlOMAN VUICH:

Yes, certainly.

T.Vould you give us your

name, please?
NS. SHEETS:

~1ary

Sheets.

Many times you' 11 find amon•3' the

savings institutions that they recognize the special needs of
children and senior citizens in the savings area and will waive
service charges for those customer groups.
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CHAIRWO~~N

VUICH:

But if that account is not in the child's

name but a trust account of a grandparent or a parent, such as
Senator Beverly indicated a few moments ago, where is the incentive to start a small savings account for a young child?

I can

remember going to grammar school many years ago and looking forward on a weekend to go to the bank to take $5 to deposit because
that meant that was being put away as a savings account.

I think

if at that time I had been asked to wait until I had $100, which
would be maybe comparable to $200 today, I don't think that account
would have ever been started.
MS. SHEETS:
policy~

I understand.

I think that it's a matter of

When you talk about trust accounts many institutions

recognize that accounts for children are set up many times as
trusts and they include that in their definition of. children's
accounts.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
that, do

But not all savings and loans honor

~hey?

MS. SHEETS:

No~

I can't speak for all of them, but I think

that in the various surveys that we've done we've found a large
number of them do recognize that need.
CHAixWm-~N

indicated,

~or

VUICH:

And for an existing account, as you

an existing account the way you notify people that

there will be service charges is that you note in the letter, or
in your correspondence, that if that account isn't brought up to
a certain amount there will be a service charge.
MR. MARTIN:
CHAIRWO!-~

That's correct.
VUICH:

Do any of you know of any instances
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where savings and loans just automatically started having service
charges on accounts without notifying them that they are going.
to be?
MR. MARTIN:

No ma'am.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

And that notification would be in the

form of something with the quarterly statement or a yearly statement of interest?
MR. MARTIN:

The only ones that I know of were individual

letters but no other inserts.
MS. SHEETS:

I can speak to Great American.

?fuen we initially

decided to service charge we were very concerned about the customer
reaction, and recognizing that a number of our competitors had
been service charging in the past, we surveyed a number of our
branches and compiled all of the input and we came up with a
special mailing piece and actually had a special phone bank where
customers could either respond by mail with the postage-paid
envelope, or call this phone bank and have their accounts consolidated by phone.

It was really a very successful .effort.

They ·

were given 90 days notification and we did not find any significant adverse customer reaction.
CHAIRWO:t-1AN VUICH:

Hell, I, as a State Senator, have numerous

letters from consumers who say that their account was charged
with service charges with ·no notification ahead of time other than
when they received their statement -- found service charges on
their statement and received no letters or communication prior
to it starting, and that's why I'm asking if the standard procedure has been to write letters.
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Now, I didn't follow it through

to ask if, in fact, they received a separate letter earlier that
they might have overlooked or just thrown away thinking it was
some advertisement, but there are numerous ones who are claiming
that they haven't received any notification until the account was
charged -- was the reason for my question.
MR. MARTIN:

Should I proceed?

CHAIRNO.HAN VUICH:
MR. MARTIN:

Thank you.

Yes, certainly.

The next question is what type of fees do

savings and loan associations presently charge?
associations charge in the following areas:

Savings and loan

Checking accounts,

credit card fees and retirement plan trustee fees.

Serviqes such

as travelers checks, money orders, · safe deposit boxes and copying
services are most often provided free to customers who maintain
minimum balances.
What type of service charges are necessary for ATl•! transactions?

ATM service charges could be justified for most trans-

actions performed.

However, it is likely that only ATM withdrawals

will be assessed service charges.
The next question, what are some of the services or activities
that savings and loan associations do not charge for that they
may charge for in the future?

With deregulation and market rates

of interest, savings and loan associations will have to begin to
unbundle services and charge for convenience type services such
as safe deposit boxes, travelers checks, money orders, copying
services and check cashing, where cost of these services justify
a charge.
As part of the pricing process, existing fees must also be

-80-

reevaluated and brought into line by competitive forces.

In the

area of fees, as it is now with interest rates, the marketplace
should continue to be the determining factor.
Additionally, many institutions require minimum balances
in passbook and checking accounts.

\ihen such minimum balances

are not maintained, service fees are assessed to cover costs of
maintaining the accounts.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

That's the end of my remarks.
And there at the same time they're

notified what those service charges are going to be?
1\olR. MARTIN:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
~1R.

MARTIN:

In maintaining those accounts.

They should be and if anybody were not to,

and if some of the examples of customers that have written to
you suggest that somebody has not done that, that is a poor
business practice and will catch up with anybody that does that.
CHAIRWOMM~

VUICH:

There again you're speaking to the

marketplace.
MR.

Correct.

!~TIN:

CHAIRWOM~l

VUICH:

So that customer is going to be unhappy

and they have a choice.
HR. MARTIN:

They have a choice .....

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Leave the account there and be charged

or move it to some other place.
MR. MARTIN:

They also communicate with other customers -

relatives and friends - and you can't stay in business and maintain any kind of market share if you don't perform business in
an ethical manner.
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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
Thank you very much.

Okay.

Any questions from any members?

Did you have anymore, Dave?

Okay.

Thank

you very much.
Is Emma Coleman Jordan here?
the consumers can come up.

Yes, a'Il three of you from

Ken l-1cEldowney and Harry Snyder.

I have to apologize for members of the Committee.

There

are other committee hearings going on and some had to leave, so
they have left, but we are recording the rest of the hearing.
The whole hearing, in fact, is being recorded.
and for the record, you're on record.
US. JORDAN:

So we'll be here,

Go ahead.

Madame Chair, I welcome the opportunity to

appear before the Committee and I'm here really to congratulate
the Committee in starting the process of collecting information
about exactly what the impact of bank service charges and fees
are upon the consumer.
CHAIRJV'OMAN VUICH:

Miss Jordan, before you continue with

your testimony - I don't know if you were here earlier today when
the hearing started - anything alluding to any court case in the
Supreme Court will not be accepted as part of the testimony.
MS. JORDAN:

Well, you have my written remarks, and I spoke

with you before the hearing; I'm very familiar with that rule
and I concur in it wholeheartedly.

I will say that my remarks

will cover two questions.
First, what do we know about the spectrum of fees charged
in the financial services industry for deposit account services?
We've heard a lot of testimony today about the availability of
information in newspapers, the availability of information if
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you were to walk around the entire state of California, picking
up cards displaying fees for individual financial institutions.
I think that if there is nothing else that comes out of this
hearing today I'm here to recommend that it is a public responsibility to collect uniformly and to publish information about
fees.
One of the things that seems clear from every bit of evidence that we've heard today is that nobody really knows or has
kept track of first, fees, what are they, how much are they and
what packages of financial services are being offered to consumers?
I can say for those of us who do research in the financial services
industry we've had to rely on anecdotal information.

I don't

think the San Francisco Bay Guardian or the WaLl. Street Journal
is a place to get that kind of very basic information.
So, I'm recommending that the first· thing that obviously
has to be done here is establish a place for the collection of
uniform information.

We heard from the regulators earlier and

they indicated that they collect some information.

We do know

from the annual statement published by the Superintendent of
Banks that there has been a 25% increase in income from service
charges by banks, banks within this state.

However, we don't

know what the sub-categories of fees are within that 25% increase.
This is a glaring gap of information and I think that certainly
no recommendation can be seriously entertained without having
basic information.

So that my first point is there is a void of

information and I don't think anyone who spoke today contradicts
that.

There is a void of uniformly publicly available systematically
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collected information.
Now, the second point that I think seems of importance is
to talk about the marketplace concept.
the marketplace.

We've heard a lot about

I, too, believe in the marketplace.

However,

I think too much is expected of the average, low income and
middle income consumer.

We're asking these people to look at

what people from the industry admit is a dizzying array of charges,
of fees, of packages, of financial services.

We've just heard

from the savings and loans and they said that they're not sure
exactly what is being offered.

And I think it is really cruel

to say that consumers should be expected to bear the brunt of
gathering the information

~nd

not only gathering it, but evaluating

the impact of this information.

This is a public responsibility

and, as I say, I'm not here to advocate the kind of regulation
that we would find in the utilities industry or various public
utilities.

I'm not talking about rate regulation.

I say there

is a basic public responsibility which includes the collection
and dissemination of uniform information.
We've had to rely, interestingly enough, on either newspapers, and in some instances, on the discovery in litigation,
and as you know, information received in litigation is confidential.
There are various privileges attached to this information and
it's not generally available to the public.

Now, the other point

that I'd like to make before closing and entertaining questions
is to talk about the relationship of state law to federal law.
What is the responsibility of state and how can this Legislature
best discharge its responsibilities with regard to the regulation
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or the collection of information.
First I'd say that we've been told that the federal government has taken an active role in this regard.

I'm here to contra-

dict that and I quote from a statement which was made DY Richard
Breeden, who is Deputy Counsel to Vice President Bush and Staff
Director of the President's Task Force on the Regulation of
Financial Services.

He said, very recently, within the last few

months that:
"At the same time that enormous changes have
been occurring in the financial markets themselves,
the federal regulatory system for financial services
has remained relatively static, and thereby has become increasingly archaic .....

In short, most of

the regulatory system of today was created for a
world which is long gone and whose financial markets had more in common with the financial world of
the Thirteen Colonies than with the worldwide
electronic integration which we know today."
So the point I'm making here is that the federal regulators
are also in a state of flux.

It would be a serious mistake to

cede your authority to the federal government when, in fact,
we've heard, there is just now a compromise reached between the
Comptroller of the Currency and Mr. Volker about the jurisdiction
over regulating these new entities.

I think that in this period

of transition there are going to be non-bank banks who are under
no one's jurisdiction.

We've heard some discussion of that.

In this period of transition, I think it would be a very serious
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mistake to cede your authority to the federal agencies with the
thoughtthat they will do a comprehensive job.

The fact of the

matter is they are in transition and it is likely that these

issues will escape attention and I think that by the time you
catch up with the practices, if abusive practices become established, it may be too late to close the barn after the horses are
well afoot.
That's the essence of my comments.

The documentation is

available in the written statement.
Thank you very much, l-iiss Jordan.

CHAIRivOMAN VUICH:
questions of Miss Jordan?
carne back.

Thank you very much.

Any

I'm happy ,you

All right, Mr. McEldowney?

MR. l-1CELDOWNEY:

r-1y name is Ken .t-IcEldowney.

I 'rn from

Consumer Action and I welcome the opportunity to testify today.
Consumer Action has long been concerned with fees and
levels of service provided by financial institutions.

Since the

late 1970s we have published two books, Break the Banks and It's
In Your Interest, and a number of surveys that have dealt with
specific aspects

~f

financial services.

In the last year we surveyed interest rates for new and
used car loans, check hold policies for banks and savings and
loans and the annual fees and interest charged by banks offering
credit cards.

Currently, we're in the midst of a survey of a

complete range of services and fees of both banks and savings
and loans in the nine county San Francisco Bay area.
In addition, our complaints switch board receives a number
of complaints pertaining to financial institutions.
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The complaints

range from those that concern people with credit cards, to check
holds being placed on social security checks, to accounts being
closed because a low balance was being maintained.
What I want to focus on today is a fear that we at Consumer Action have, that deregulation of the banking industry may
result in large numbers of poor families being denied access to
checking and savings accounts.
Recent surveys indicated that banks, almost with exception,
are planning to seek out the affluent customer and substantially
scale back their commitment to the mass market.

In some cases

this has met sharply increasing fees.
A test survey we recently conducted at major banks and
savings and loans found that savings and loans are now chargiDg
$4 to $6 a month for their basic checking accounts.

Many banks

werechargingflat fees as high as $7 per month or $84 a year.
The high monthly charge is not the only way the checking accounts
for the poor may be restricted.

We found that nearly half of

the institutions we surveyed now require a major credit card in
order to open a checking account, and this is in a nation in which
less than 70 million people have major credit cards and 10 million
get turned downeachyear when they apply for such cards.
We also discovered high minimum deposits being required
to open accounts.

Some institutions were requiring $300 to $500

just to open an account.
Currently, 90% of American households have checking accounts
but we fear that deregulation and other factors will drive this
figure down in coming years.

We understand the need on the part
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of banks and savings and loans to make a profit but believe they
also have a social responsibility to provide accounts to all of
those who want and need them at rates and conditions that are
reasonable.

Certainly in areas such as telephone service, gas and

electricity, lifeline services have been provided.

In areas such

as insurance in the inner city, an auto insurance provision has
been made to guarantee that all who need such policies can receive
them.
The .problems facing poor people and banks and savings and
loans is.one that must be dealt with.

Committees such as this

and the House· and Banking Committee in Washington are concerned
in seeking solutions.
I'd like to sort of add a couple of comments.

I can under-

stand the need for an I.D. to open a checking account, and this
has long been, I think, a widely accepted practice.

I can't

understand requiring a major credit card when a sizable part of
our population cannot qualify for one.

Banks need identification

checks for accounts not credit checks.
The second thing also touched on before was our concern
that the

hig~

initial deposit may serve as a deterrent for people

who would need accounts.
Also, banks and savings and loans have stated that deregulation is forcing them to make their services cost-based, but
what are the actual costs· of providing basic checking accounts
and handling such items as balanced checks and what revenue is
generated in these areas?

In the

abse~ce

of this information,

there's no way of determining whether financial institutions are
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using revenues from checking accounts and small savings accounts
to subsidize other types of accounts in the marketplace.
The other thing I wanted to touch on, just in terms of the
marketplace regulating and some other things that people talked
about before, in terms of information being readily available,
we have had considerable difficulty in terms of getting accurate
information about fees and charges when we conduct surveys.

And

remember, this is a consumer organization that's been conducting
surveys in financial services for 7 or 8 years.

lve could not find

information on bank credit card fees and interest rates at the
branch level.

We had to go to the central office of the banks

to obtain this information.

When we've done surveys of auto loan

rates and tried to talk to the loan officers at the branch level,
we found that in some of the banks we've had to go to 5 or 6
different branches to get two or three loan officers who would
agree with each other.

I don't think that the market can regu-

late fees because of this confusion on the part of the banking
employees.
When our survey of Bay area checking and savings accounts
is completed this summer, I will send members of the Committee
copies of the results.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
MR. SNYDER:

Thank you very much.
Thank you.

Any questions?

My name is Harry Snyder.

All right.

I'm with Consumers

Union and thank you for the invitation to come here and speak.
I'm particularly grateful that this is being recorded.

I'm sure

that the transcript will be useful at the interstate banking
hearings when we have such a strong commitment to a free market
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exhibited by the banking industry from California.

I'm sure that

they'll be pleased to be consistent in that position when it comes
to providing competition, so that consumers can get the best deal
in the marketplace.
I've personally been involved in the banking industry for
approximately 21 years.

I used to work for Union Bank and was

one of those responsible for instituting daily interest, and as a
.

.

lawyer, I started my career representing Union Banks, small local
banks and Transamerican Corporation.

I have some knowledge of

the banking industry and I have a great deal of faith in them and
I have a great deal of faith in the operation of the marketplace
where the marketplace works.
I have some serious concerns about the jump shift that we
now see in the provision of services and the charges for services
and the uniformity of the banking industry increasing the charges
of services.

In other areas this would look like parallel pricing

is going on.

Everybody is looking around to see what everybody

else is doing and saying, well, if they went to six I can go to
seven.

There is little competition on the downward side to main-

tain prices.

There seems to be excessive _competition to see who

can charge the most for services.
As long as the marketplace works, people in the marketplace
will have options for banking services but those without power
will not have the options, and we've heard two people testifying
today about their concerns and I share them, that low, moderate
income persons, not to mention poor persons, will be priced out
of, or completely eliminated from, the banking system.
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Yes, in

time, the marketplace may work and other mechanisms may come in
but those mechanisms may not be as safe or as sure as the banking
system.

And we should remember, even though this meeting was

started by a guarantee, that there would be nothing happening as
a result of it by some members of the Committee, that it was
regulation - I meant the statement that nobody on the Committee
wanted to regulate - I'm not sure that that was a statement for
all the members of the Committee.
CHAiruvOMAN VUICH:

That wasn't a statement speaking for the

whole Committee.
MR. SNYDER:

I agree with that.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

That was a statement made by one Senator.

MR. SNYDER:

I think we should all remember that it

Yes.

was regulation that saved this industry.

It was regulation that

saved consumers by providing a safe and secure means of providing
economic business.

In unraveling that regulation and in determining

what's not necessary any longer, we have to be very careful that
we don't undo some of the very things that were essential to the
savings industry.
Present California law appears adequate to address the
question of excess charges if you allow attorneys to go case by
case and then receive attorneys fees for prosecuting banks for
charging excess charges.

That doesn't mean that the state does

not want to regulate that in order to provide protection for
consumers at some future date.

But there is some state law that

is adequate under the contract doctrines to provide access to the
courts.

It's a long slow and laborious way of going about the
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business but perhaps it may be effective in the short run.

But

there is
SENATOR BEVERLY:
CHAIRWOM-~

VUICH:

SENATOR BEVERLY:
MR. SNYDER:

Yes, certainly.

Senator Beverly?

Those actions, are they based on contract?

Yes, they're based on contract principles.

SENATOR BEVERLY:
MR. SNYDER:

Could I ask a question on that point?

Okay.

Tha~k

you.

I'd like to correct one thing that I thought I

heard stated up here by the California Bankers Association as well
and that is that the California Bankers Association has filed an
amicus brief in the California State Supreme Court supporting the
Comptroller of the Currency's right to preempt state law and we'll
provide this Committee with a copy of that brief.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
SENATOR TORRES:

Senator Torres.
Do you mean to tell me that there has been

a brief filed by the California Bankers Association?
MR. SNYDER:

In the California Supreme Court.

SENATOR TORRES:
.r-1-R. SNYDER:

In the California Supreme Court

Which supports the right of the Comptroller

of the Currency to adopt their interpretory regulations.
SENATOR TORRES:

Is Mr. Cook still here?

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
MR. SNYDER:

No, but Ur .. Reynolds is.

We'll provide you with a copy of that brief.

SENATOR TORRES:

I can't believe that Mr. Cook would ••..

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Mr. Reynolds, do you have anything to

say on that?
MR. REYNOLDS:

I'm unaware of it.
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SENATOR TORRES:

l·1as Mr. Cook aware that such a brief was

filed?
~fR.

REYNOLDS:

I don't think so.

Our office is not aware

of that.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Mr. Snyder, when was that filed, do

you know?
!.fR. SNYDER:
to that case.

About a week ago, I be 1 ieve.

We are

par~ ie s

I am now an attorney in the case and I happen to

get copies of everything that's filed.
SENATOR TORRES:

Well, Madame Chairperson, I would really

question the veracity of any future testimony from the Bankers
Association if they're not going to be totally truthful with us
on this issue.
MR. SNYDER:

Well, Senator, I'll provide you with the brief

and you make your own decision on that, as well as the rest of
the Committee.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
UNIDENTIFIED:

How soon could you provide us with a copy?

Senator, I have a copy of the brief.

It

was filed on January 27th, I believe.
SENATOR TORRES:
CHAIRWOr.fAN VUICH:

Can you believe that?!
I'll pass this down to the attorneys

of this Committee to review.

There, again, it relates to the

case that's in court, but the statement that was made is .....
SENATOR

~ORRES:

I just think it's outrageous to this

Committee.
M~.

SNYDER:

Well, I thought I heard it wrong because I

was at the back, but to avoid any problems I thought I would just
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provide the brief at a later date.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

If you'll wait just one moment while

it's reviewed.
I believe the record will show, Senator Torres, the line
of questioning that you had of the California Banking Association
and the replies thatweregiven, I don't recall the exact wording,
but I do believe when we talked about the Comptroller's decision
and I stand to be corrected - that Mr. Cook's answer was that he
couldn't speak for all of the banks in their Association.

Maybe

Mr. Reynolds can repeat what was said.
MR. REYNOLDS:

Thank you, Madame Chair.

That was his comment.

We in the Sacramento office are unaware of any brief that's been
filed.

If this is a brief of the· California Bankers Association

in the litigation you're discussing it'snewsto us, but that would
have been done by our general counsel out of San Francisco.
Well, Mr. Cook is representing the Bankers

SENATOR TORRES:
Association, is he not?

r.m. REYNOLDS:

That is correct.

SENATOR TORRES:

The brief was filed by your Association,

not by an individual bank, so that disclaimer wouldn't apply,
Madame Chairperson.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

Well, I was just commenting on the part

that I thought I heard during the questioning and that was that
his answer was that he couldn't speak on behalf of all of the
members of the Association.

So what I'm saying is that leads me

to believe that he wasn't aware of it either at the time .•..
MR. REYNOLDS:

That is correct, Madame Chair.
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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

and that's the reason for my

trying to explain to you what I thought I heard him say.
SENATOR TORRES:

But I would think that on an issue as

important as this and the importance of this Committee holding
such a hearing ....
CHAIRWOr~

VUICH:

SENATOR TORRES:

That he should have known.
.... with your leadership that there should

have been some communication by your general counsel to your boys
up here, or your gals and boys up here as to what's going on.
MR. REYNOLDS:

Senator, I don't like being surprised either.

As I say, I'm unaware of this.
SENATOR

TORP~S:

Well, we've learned two things, that certain

statutes have been repealed and certain briefs have been filed,
Blair.
MR. REYNOLDS:

That's right.

Independently, Madame Chair,

and Senator Torres, I will get in touch with our legal office in
San Francisco and get the proper story and get it to you.*
CHAIR~'lOMAN

VUICH:

We would like to have the information

to clarify our records as they will show on the recorded tape.
MR. REYNOLDS:
CHAIR~'lOMAN

Absolutely.

VUICH:

And we will be meeting again as a

committee on the 22nd and maybe we can have someone come then
and explain what happened.
MR. REYNOLDS:

Very good.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
SENATOR KEENE:

Yes, Senator Keene.

A very cursory reading of this brief, which

is in the Appellate Court, the StateAppealsCourt, and not a

-------- --*See Appendix r:
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federal court, has to do with a trial court, State Trial Court
decision, a Superior Court decision, which apparently- and I'm
reading between the lines now, because I haven't read enough of
it yet - suggested that the banks did not have to obey the decision
of the Comptroller of the Currency.
MR. SNYDER:
the way it went.

That's not correct?

I don't believe so.

I don't believe that's

It ·was that they were not subject to state law

but were subje9t to

but that the Comptroller had preempted

the state's ability to regulate in this area, and there was a
further brief, Senator, and I don't want to speak to that either,
because as I say I just saw it and glanced at it as it went across
my desk, but it's a clear position of the California Bankers
Association in support of the Comptroller's right to preempt the
state agency from regulating over fees.

Now, I don't think there's

anything surprising about that.
CHAIR~"l0!-1AN

VUICH:

No, except that the topic came up earlier

today in the Committee hearing.
l4R. SNYDER:

Yes, that's why I wanted to correct the record

and provide ·the Committee with copies of the brief.
SENATOR KEENE:

Well, the only distinction that might be

drawn, :a nd it may be a totally incorrect one, but it might be
drawn, is that a comment to the effect that one does not approve
of, or support federal authority in this case- it might wish to
overturn it - nonetheless that that federal authority exists, and
I think what this brief goes to is the question of whether that
federal authority exists and that conclusion is based on the most
cursory readings of the brief and I just ••.•
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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

There, again, we're touching bases on

items that are in the court systems of California and I would like
pa~ticular

to withhold any comments of ours on that
the fact that there was a brief filed.

issue except

Other than that, I don't

think we should go into it any further.
r1R. REYNOLDS:

Madame Chair, I was walking back in the room

when I came in the middle of this conversation.

It sounds, as

I hear the discussion unfolding, that this is a brief that was
filed in the Crocker case, is that correct?

Then basically I

would just assume that this is an additional argument by counsel,
stating that there has been interpretive rulings from the Comptroller
of the Currency in this regard and that therefore that should
take care of the issue.

That is not, in any manner, a position

of the California Bankers Association that is supporting or
opposing the Comptroller of the Currency.

It is stating a fact

of an interpretive ruling and leaving it to the court to determine
its legal validity.

I think that's really what it amounts to.

CHAIRlvOr.IAN VUICH:

All right.

Thank you very much, Mr.

Reynolds.
MR. SNYDER:

I think that the statement on the record in

the briefs will speak for themselves as I couldn't hear it exactly
from the back and thought that the briefs would help clarify the
Bankers Association.

They do support the Comptroller's authority

to preempt state law.
SENATOR

KEE~E:

Hadame Chairman?

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
SENATOR KEENE:

Yes, Senator Keene.

tVhen you use the word
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11

support,

11

do you mean

support as a legal conclusion or do you mean support in terms
of political support?
preempt?

They like the Comptroller's decision to

If you're saying that, it's one thing.

If you're saying

that they believe that the Comptroller has authority to preempt
but they may not like it, that's another kind of conclusion.
MR. SNYDER:

My cursory reading of the most recent brief,

there was no indication that they weren't fully supportive of it,
Senator.

I mean, I don't want to mislead you with the law .

SENATOR KEENE:
r~~.

SNYDER:

...

Legally supportive or politically supportive?

I think both.

I think they did both, but you

have to read the brief and I have to read the brief.
SENATOR KEENE:
MR. SNYDER:

And I will.

I think it points up a very interesting problem

and that is that bankers, financial institutions, businesses,
have a very legitimate pursuit of profit in a tough competitive
market to operate in and in pursuing that profit sometimes they
step over the boundaries, and sometimes
the boundaries.
boundaries.

~hey

attempt to change

In this case, they have . attempted to change the

The persons who are litigating that suit went to

the Comptroller to change the ground rules.
we've all seen that.

That's nothing new,

What we see is serious clouds on the horizon

for the continued provision of financial services as we've known
them in the past.
CHAIRwormN VUICH:
SENATOR KEENE:

Senator Keene?

Madame Chair, I hate to keep interrupting

but the waters are getting very muddied and I want to be sure I
understand what it is that's being said.
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Are you saying that the

Bankers ·, who filed this amicus brief, went to the Cbmptroller of
the Currency and said, you do this?

r.m. SNYDER:

Not exactly the same bankers.

counsel went to the Comptroller .o f the Currency

Other bank
wrote the

interpretive regulation
CHAIR~\TOMAN

VUICH:

I will have to call this discussion out

of order because I originally said we are not to consider any
information concerning what's in the court system.

Now, your

allegation, whether it's right or wrong, but it's furnished here
with some paper, contradictory to a statement that Senator Torres
felt he heard corning from the California Bankers Association,
that part will be recognized.
any court cases.

Aside from that, let's not discuss

You can go on on the discussion of bank service

charges, please.
MR. SNYDER:

I'm sorry, I got off on a tangent.

I didn't

mean to.
We all know that many banks have indicated a desire to stop
servicing small accounts, some to stop servicing consumer accounts,
some even to stop servicing small banks -- small businesses.
Banking services, however, have become a necessity of life.

You

cannot really exist today without them and at some point as services
cease

to be offered, or as one banker up here said, as we price

people out of the market so that they don't want the service
anymore, the state's going to have to face up to a policy decision
about how the state is going to see to it that people have access
to the financial system.

';tlhile the evidence may not be in that

does not make a case for saying this state should not regulate
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in this area.
And I should also say that in answer to Senator Keene's
questions, we should be looking at the proliferation of all of
the bank charges that are going on.

Those loan fees have begun

to accumulate, they've gone up, they charge you for processing
papers that weren't charqed for before.

There are all kinds nf fees,

and the banks, there is some suspicion that those banks who are
going to continue to service small customers are going to do so
and subsidize some of their entrepreneurial ventures through
excess charges to small consumers, or subsidize large borrowers
and large customers who have more clout in the marketplace and
can demand lower fees.
I think that the state regulatory and -- since we do license
banks and since we do regulate banks, our authority, the s_tate 's
authority, is not limited and we must maintain that authority.

I

think it's incumbent upon the state to gather specific evidence
about how much consumers are being charged in the marketplace
now, about . how much it costs banks and savings and loans to provide those services to see if they are, indeed, cost based or,
rather, based on how much the market will bear.

I believe it's

incumbent that the state do a survey to find out what services ar..e no
longer being offered and what the impact of the pricing policies
are on various income groups within California.
Now, I think that this is an ongoing obligation of this
Committee and this Legislature and this Administration.

I think

that the disclosure requirements certainly could, perhaps, look
at a regulatory or legislative improvement because we all agree

--
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i

..

that customers are not
i~

gettin~

enough information or getting it

a useful manner, so perhaps that could be improved.
I know that there's another serious area of concern that

perhaps needs

~o

be addressed on a legislative basis and that is

the fact that banks are now beginning to charge for cashing
non-customer checks and charging for cashing of non-customer
state, federal and local government checks, and I'm not sure that
the state wants to allow that to happen.

I think that's a serious

concern when an unemployment or disability check can only be
cashed for a $6 or $7 charge.
I hope to be able to come back to this Committee and present
more testimony on specific legislation and perhaps on specif1c
proposals for further research.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

In relation to bank service charges, for

example, for handling overdraft checks, or refusing them or
honoring them, do you believe and have you checked through your
consumers groups as to how much liability is there for the banks
to handle these checks?

Not just the cost of handling them but

how many times do they lose when they do honor a check against
insufficient funds?
MS. JORDAN:

I can address that·.

If you remember the last

time I appeared before this Committee was with regard to A.B. 1723,
the float legislation.
CHAIRWO~~l

VUICH:

Wait a minute.

We're not talking about the

float, we're talking about a sPecific question that I asked Mr.
Snyder.

Now, . if Mr. Snyder can't answer it then I will ask some-

body else.
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MR. SNYDER:

I can't answer that, I'm sorry.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
MS. JORDAN:

All right.

The research that was used for that bill that

I was referring to, and I'd be happy to defer to Mr. Snyder if
you prefer him to answer it, but it happens I have the answer as
well .
.HR. SNYDER:
CHAIRWO~ffiN

I don't have the answer to that.
VUICH:

No one has

eve~

in your consumer groups,

done any research to find out how much money a bank loses in
instances where they do honor an overdraft of an account that is
never made good?
MR. SNYDER:

No, I wouldn't say that, Senator.

We've been

in existence publishing a magazine that examines those questions
for almost 50 years now and we probably have looked at it.

I

know that we have not looked at the actual losses recently but
that's the cost of doing business.
CHAIRWO~l

MR. SNYDER:

VUICH:

It's not an unusual

Who should bear that cost?

Well, I think there's no secret to that.

The

customers have to pay for the services that they're getting.
CHAIRWO~mN

VUICH:

All right.

So if I write a check against

insufficient funds and my account gets charged, there's a fee
involved for handling the account and I skip and don't ever repay
the bank for that money.

Is there any record, anyplace in your

consumer groups, that can tell me how

m~ch

money is lost by the

bank like that?
MR. SNYDER:

Well, I think the State Banking Department

probably has figures for annual losses by banks on NSF checks
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and I'm sure the banks report those figures.

And as I say, that's

a cost of doing business that they have to recover.
MS. JORDAN:

This is information which is collected by the

Bank Administration Institute.

Each year they publish a survey

on the survey of the check collection system and this is data
which is available through the Bank Administration Institute.
Less than 1% of all checks issued are NSF checks and of those 1%,
80% of those checks are checks which are for amounts less than
$100, and we do have a figure, which I'd be happy to provide to
the Committee

in

stration Institute.

follow up correspondence from the Bank AdminiThat is an institute which is •...

CHAIR'NOI1AN VUICH:
lo1S. JORDAN:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
question.

80% of those are under $100, you said?

But how many -- you're not answering my

How many of those are never made good?

How many are

lost

r1s • JORDAN :

On the second submission is what you're

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

I have a check, I have a

checkin~

account,

I write a check for $100, I don't have $100 in my bank account,
I have $20, so the bank honors the check and pays out $100.

They

are paying out $80 of their money -- $20 was only of mine.
MS. JORDAN:

That is a figure I don't have at the top of

my memory; however, it is available.
CHAIRWO~mN

$80?

~'lho

VUICH:

And what if I don't ever make up that

suffers that loss?

The bank does.

How does the bank

make up that loss? -- if it isn't for handling overdrawn accounts
or refusing to honor that check.
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t-1S. JORDP..N:

Hell, I think, certainly, it is an i tern of

doing business, which includes the losses which the banks absorb
for checks which are never made good.
CHAIRl"lOMAN VUICH:

Is that part of the consideration for

bank service charges on handling those checks?
MS. JORDAN:

Well, you know, the int.e resting question which

I think is one you haven't asked which I will pose
CHAim\TOMA.~

r,1S. JORDAN:

VUICH:
~\Tell,

. ..
~

But you haven't answered my question.
I've said that the information is avail-

able and I'd be happy to provide it.
CHAIRWOUAN VUICH:

But you're not answering what you think,

if that should be considered in the amount of service charges that
are charged for handling insufficient funds.
MS. JORDAN:

I will answer that and my answer is certainly

it should and the question is proportionality.
in excess of actual costs?
will lie in litigation.

Are fees charged

and the answer to that, I suppose,

If not, in answers to this Committee --

forthright answers to the Committee.
MR~

SNYDER:

I think, Senator, the question is, consumer

groups don't have access to bank records.

I think the amount of

those losses and the cost of handling those NSF checks, both
taken together, are pertinent to this discussion.
vide it because we're not banks.

We can't pro-

The banks know that infor-

mation .... .
CHAIR~\TOMAN

VUICH:

So I asked you if you as consumer groups

have ever gathered that information.
MR. SNYDER:

That was a simple question.

I haven't done it lately.
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CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:

So you don't have that available infor-

mation?
MR. SNYDER:

No, I don't have it, no.

MS. JORDAN:

Cost information is -- much of it is pro-

prietary information and the banks refuse to disclose it except
during litigation, so it's piecemeal.
CHAim-lm1AN VUICH:

No, I just asked a simple question.

Don't

you think that that goes into the consideration of cost of services
that are going to be provided?
MS. JORDAN:

If I knew I would think so, but the problem is

much of this information is kept from public view.
CHAIR~lor1AN

questions.

VUICH:

All right.

I don't have any further

Do any of you?

MR. SNYDER:

I should say there is a further brief that we

will try to provide you tomorrow, if not, on Friday at the latest.
CHAIR~·lm1AN

VUICH:

All right, '"'ould you please?

Thank you.

Senator Keene.
SENATOR KEENE:

t-1r. Snyder, I just want to be clear about

your position, not having anything to do with any of the cases.
It's your contention that the -- let me put it another way.
There's no question in your mind that the Comptroller's decision
topreemptthe states was encouraged by the banking industry.
MR. SNYDER:

No question about that.

SENATOR KEENE:
MR. SNYDER:
to that as well.

Thank you.

I can provide the Committee with some evidence
I'll be happy to do that.

SENATOR KEENE:

Okay.

I don't believe the brief is
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necessarily evidence of that but I do believe

r-m.

SNYDER:

I have other evidence as well.

SENATOR KEENE:

Ne have a New York Times article that was

just shown to me that suggests that was so.
CHAIRWOMAN VUICH:
MR. SNYDER:

Thank you.

Yes, thank you very much.

Thank you.

CHAIRWOl1AN VUICH:

Ne are losing our Committee membership.

We did have some requests for further testimony but it relates
to the court cases that we have be~ore us, and as I indicated at
the beginning, if anyone has any written information that they
would like to furnish us with to become part of our hearincr
process, I will be happy to accept that, but we are not going
to hear from any attorneys who are in litigation on any court
cases in the state at the present time.

So if anyone has any

written material that they would like to furnish us with we will
be happy to accept that at this moment.
will be adjourned.

Thank you.

#######
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OPENING STATEMENT OF
SENATOR ROSE ANN , VUICH
February 8, 1984 Hearinq
Senate Bankinq and Commerce Committee

As you all are aware, Todd Conover, who is the
Comptroller of the Currency, recently, on December 2, 1983, made
an interpretive decision (or ruling) which says "state law which
interferes with the ability of national banks to establish
service charges is preempted."
Since his decision, there has been much publicity and
discussion as to how it was handled and how it will affect our
state government and its people.
Which brings about the purpose of this hearing.
1. To give the Legislature and the pubiic an
opportunity to learn why bank service charges have
increased, and what to expect in the near future.
2. This hearing will serve as a means for all sides to
present objective information on this important subject
matter.
3. Having this hearing does not imply that the Senate
is for or against positions taken by savings and loan
associations, banks, consumers or regulators.
We have an agenda that we intend to adhere to. We will
first hear from our regulators, then financial institutions and
consumers. After each presentation, the Committee Members will
have an opportunity for questions and answers.
The court cases that are active today have nothing to do
with our hearing today. Therefore, I, as chair of this
Committee, with the Committee's support, will not allow any
testimony by any attorneys involved in any pending case before
any court in the state. Allowing them to testify would prejudice
the case because the subject matter is the same as the court
case.
If you have written material, please submit it to the
Committee for consideration.
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LOUIS CARTER
SUPERINTENDENT OF BANKS
CALIFORNIA STATE BANKING DEPARTMENT

TESTIMONY BEFORE THE CALIFORNIA LEGISLATIVE
SENATE BANKING AND COMMERCE COMMITTEE

FEBRUARY 8, 1984

CHAIRWOMAN VUICH, MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE, I AM LOUIS CARTER,
SUPERINTENDENT OF BANKS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

I AM PLEASED

TO HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TODAY TO EXPRESS THE VIEWS OF THE STATE
BANKING DEPARTMENT IN REGARDS TO THE BANK FEE ISSUE THAT HAS
RECENTLY ATTRACTED SUCH ATTENTION.
I

WOULD LIKE TO BE RESPONSIVE TO THE COMMITTEE'S INTERESTS

REGARDING BANK FEES AND DEREGULATION AND I OFFER OUR COOPERATION
AS YOU CONSIDER THIS MATTER.

AS WE CAN RECALL HISTORY, IN 1933, CONGRESS BEGAN PASSING LAWS TO
PROTECT, AS WELL AS RESTRICT, INDUSTRY AUTHORITY FOR OPERATING
WITHIN THE FINANCIAL MARKETPLACE.
THE GLASS-S'IEAGALL ACT, AS PASSED BY CONGRESS IN 1933, BARRED
COMMERCIAL BANKS FROM THE INVESTMENT UNDERWRITING BUSINESS, AND
OWNING EQUITY IN NON-BANKING BUSINESSES.

THE PASSAGE OF THE BANK

HOLDING COMPANY ACT PROHIBITED THE COMMON OWNERSHIP OF BANKS AND
COMMERCIAL ENTERPRISES.
MAINTAIN CONSUMER

THESE LAWS WERE PASSED EXPRESSLY TO

CONFIDENCE,

SOUNDNESS OF THE BANKING SYSTEM.

STABILITY,

AND THE SAFETY AND

THESE LAWS WERE ALSO ENACTED TO

ASSURE EQUITABLE AND COMPETITIVE ACCESS TO SERVICES BY CONSUMERS,
AND

BUSINESSES,

AND

TO

PRESERVE

SEPARATING BANKING AND COMMERCE.

THAT

LONG-HELD

MECHANISM

A DISCUSSION HERE TODAY ON BANK FEES SHOULD BEGIN WITH A VIEW OF
CALIFORNIA'S HISTORIC AND CURRENT POLICY REGARDING BANK FEES.

I~

APPEARS TO US THAT THAT POLICY IS NOT TO LEGISLATE OR REGULATE

BANK FEES.

THE

INTENT NOT

TO

REGULATE FEES IS REFLECTED IN THE MAJOR

AFFIRMATIVE STEP TAKEN BY THE LEGISLATURE AND THE ONLY PROVISION
FOR FEES IN OUR BANKING LAW, THAT BEING, THE PROVISIONS REQUIRING
ONLY THE DISCLOSURE. OF . BANK ACCOUNT CHARGES FOUND IN FINANCIAL
CODE SECTION .865 AND FOLLOWING.

OUR DEPARTMENT HAS NOT BEEN INVOLVED IN REGULATING FEES.

OUR

POLICY

THE

ENFORCES

DISCLOSURE

OF

MARKETPLACE TO MANDATED CHARGE

CHARGES

DETERMINED

LIMITATIONS ~

IN

THE DISCLOSURE

PROVISIONS REQUIRE A CALIFORNIA BANK TO PROVIDE EACH CUSTOMER
INFORMATION ABOUT THE ACTUAL CHARGES WHICH MAY BE IMPOSED ON AN
ACCOUNT, OR THE METHOD OF CALCULATING THE CHARGE, IF IT IS NOT
FIXED.

PRIOR

TO OPENING AN ACCOUNT,

THE CUSTOMER MUST BE

NOTIFIED OF THE CHARGES, AND, AFTER THE ACCOUNT IS ESTABLISHED,
THE CUSTOMER MUST BE NOTIFIED, IN ADVANCE OF ANY INCREASES IN
ACCOUNT CHARGES.
UNDER SUCH AN ARRANGEMENT, THE CUSTOMER OF FINANCIAL SERVICES CAN
MAKE INFORMED DECISIONS REGARDING THE PRICE HE PAYS FOR ACCOUNT
SERVICES AND CAN EVALUATE ALTERNATIVES IN THE MARKETPLACE.
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IN THIS VIEW -- IT APPEARS THAT THE CURRENT POLICY OF CALIFORNIA,
IS NOT TO RESTRICT ACCOUNT-CHARGES, MADE BY BANKS.

THIS POLICY

PROVIDES FOR MARKETPLACE DETERMINATION OF FEES AND CHARGES AND
ENABLES CALIFORNIA BANKS TO ADJUST TO VARIATIONS IN THE MARKET
AND IN THEIR MARKET STRATEGY, AND TO CONTINUE TO SERVICE THE
BANKING NEEDS OF THE PUBLIC, DESPITE EVEN SIGNIFICANT MARKETPLACE
VARIATION.
THIS IS NOT UNLIKE ANY OTHER BUSINESS WE MAY BE FAMILIAR WITH.

WE

DO NOT FIND IT UNUSUAL THAT A MANUFACTURER PRICES HIS PRODUCT TO
REFLECT HIS COSTS AND DESIRED PROFIT, OR THAT A REPAIRMAN CHARGES
US FOR HIS TIME AND EXPENSE.

WE HAVE ENTERED THE TIME WHEN WE CAN
BANKS HAVE BEGUN TO

EXPECT A SIMILAR VIEWPOINT IN BANKING.

UNBUNDLE SERVICES AND HAVE EMPLOYED AN ACCOUNTING TOOL THAT IS
RELATIVELY

NEW

ANALYSIS.

INSTEAD OF LOOKING AT THE BANK AS ONE LARGE PROFIT

CENTER,

BANKS

TO

THE

HAVE

BANKING

CREATED

SERVICES THEY PROVIDE.

INDUSTRY

PROFIT

FUNCTIONAL

CENTERS FOR

THE

COST

VARIOUS

NOW, LIKE ANY OTHER BUSINESS, BANKS ARE

BEGINNING TO RECOGNIZE THEIR COSTS BY PRODUCT LINE, AND HAVE
BEGUN CHARGING ACCORDINGLY.

AS REQUESTED FOR THIS HEARING, OUR DEPARTMENT GATHERED DISCLOSURE
INFORMATION

FROM

NUMEROUS CALIFORNIA

BANKS,

BOTH STATE AND

NATIONAL IN DIFFERENT MARKETS THROUGHOUT CALIFORNIA.
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THE SAMPLING INDICATES THAT FOR DEMAND DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS, WITH NO
MINIMUM BALANCE REQUIREMENT, THE AVERAGE MONTHLY FEE WAS $3 AND A
15¢ CHARGE FOR EACH CHECK WRITTEN IS REQUIRED.
MONTHLY FEE WAS $1.25 AND THE HIGHEST WAS $10.
RANGED FROM NO CHARGE UP TO 25¢ PER CHECK.

THE LOWEST
CHECK CHARGES

MOST OF THE BANKS

OFFER FREE ACCOUNTS TO THOSE OVER THE AGE OF 62.

CHECKING

SERVICES WERE OFFERED FREE TO THOSE WHO MAINTAIN A MINIMUM
BALANCE OF $500-$600 OR AN AVERAGE BALANCE OF $1,000.

AS A COMPARISON, WE TOOK A LOOK AT THE FEES OF CHECK CASHERS.
CHECK CASHERS CHARGE 1-1/2S OF THE AMOUNT OF THE CHECK.

WITH THE

AVERAGE WEEKLY UNEMPLOYMENT CHECK $106, THOSE THAT CAN LEAST
AFFORD EXTRA C'OSTS WOULD PAY $6.36 PER MONTH, JUST FOR CASHING
THEIR BENEFIT PAYMENTS, COMPARED TO A $3 BANK CHARGE.

MONEY

ORDERS TO PAY BILLS WOULD COST 75¢ TO $1.25 EACH COMPARED TO CHECK
CHARGES AVERAGING 15¢ EACH.
AS REGARDS TO 'l'HE COMPETITIVE CONTEXT IN WHICH BANK FEES AND
CHARGES CAN BE VIEWED TODAY, . WE LOOK TO THE WISDOM OF THE
LEGISLATURE AND THE PEOPLE OF CALIFORNIA, WHO HAVE DETERMINED
THAT THE MARKETPLACE SHOULD BE THE DETERMINANT OF BANK FEES.

THE

ISSUE

THE

OF

MARKETPLACE

INQUIRY
IS

HERE

CHANGING,

TODAY

REFLECTS

THE

FACT

AND

CHAN.GING

RAPIDLY.

CONJUNCTION, THE PRACTICE OF BANKING IS CHANGING ALSO.
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THAT
AND

IN

TODAY, THE FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY IS EXPERIENCING A DYNAMIC
CHANGE.

CHANGE WAS INITIATED BY THE "NON-BANK" COMPETITOR TAKING

ADVANTAGE OF LOOPHOLES IN THE BANK HOLDING COMPANY ACT, OFFERING
MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS AT MARKET RATES OF INTEREST.

THIS

COMPETITION,

ECONOMIC

ALONG

DOWNTURN

AND

WITH
HIGH

THE

FORCES OF

INTEREST

RATES

INFLATION,

THE

CAUSED BANKS

TO

EXPERIENCE POOR OPERATING RESULTS STARTING.IN 1982.
DEREGULATION

IS

RELATIVELY

NEW

TO

THE

BANKING

INDUSTRY.

HISTORICALLY, BANKS PREVIOUSLY ENJOYED PROTECTION ON PRODUCTS
OFFERED, AND WERE RESTRICTED ON INTEREST RATES THEY COULD PAY ON
TIME

DEPOSITS.

THE EARNINGS FROM LOW INTEREST. RATES PAID

DEPOSITORS ALLOWED BANKS TO OFFER LOW OR NO SERVICE CHARGES FOR
SERVICES AND PROVIDE OTHER SO-CALLED FREE SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS
IN ORDER TO COMPETE WITH THE OTHER BANK OR SAVINGS AND LOAN
ASSOCIATION DOWN· THE STREET.
DEREGULATION AFFECTS BANKS PROFITABILITY TODAY AS NEVER BEFORE.
PRICE DEREGULATION,

OR,

THE RATE OF

INTEREST PAID ON TIME

DEPOSITS HAS DRIVEN UP THE COST OF FUNDS TO THE EXTENT THAT BANKS
HAVE BEEN FORCED TO SEARCH FOR NEW PROFIT OPPORTUNITIES TO REMAIN
COMPETITIVE IN THE MARKETPLACE.

THE MEMBERS OF THIS COMMITTEE ARE AWARE OF THE PROGRESS OF
DEREGULATION

OF

THE

BANKING

INDUSTRY.

-5-·

GENERALLY,

WE HAVE

DEREGULATED THE LIABILITY SIDE OF THE BANK, RESULTING IN THE
BANK'S ABILITY TO ATTRACT DEPOSITS AT AN INCREASED COST.

WE HAVE

NOT, HOWEVER, DEREGULATED THE ASSET SIDE OF THE BANK TO THE SAME
EXJENT, TO OFFER AN ARRAY OF NEW INCOME OPPORTUNITIES TO ADDRESS
THE INCREASED EXPENSE OF LIABILITIES OR DEPOSITS.

THAT IS NOT AS

TRUE FOR MANY CALIFORNIA STATE-CHARTERED BANKS TOPAY WITH SOME OF
THE RECENT NEW POWER ADVANCES WE HAVE MADE HERE, BUT IT IS
IMPORTANT TO THE CALIFORNIA BANKING INDUSTRY IN TOTAL.
IN THE FACE OF PARTIAL DEREGULATION, BANKS HAVE BEEN FACED WITH
THREE BASIC OPTIONS:
THEY CAN REDUCE COSTS OF OPERATIONS AND STAFFING AND
RAISE FEES.
THEY CAN ATTEMPT TO STREAMLINE THEIR DELIVERY SYSTEM
AND USE MORE ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS.
THEY CAN SELL MORE PRODUCTS THROUGH THE EXISTING
SYSTEM TO SPREAD OVERHEAD COSTS.
WE HAVE SEEN BANKS' CONCERNED EFFORTS TO ADDRESS THESE OPTIONS,
BUT SOME OPTIONS ARE LONG TERM, AND COSTLY, AND OTHERS ARE
BLOCKED BY LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY CONDITIONS.

WHAT COULD BE

MOST QUICKLY IMPLEMENTED TO ADDRESS THE PROFIT SQUEEZE ON BANKS
HAVE BEEN COST REDUCTIONS AND FEE INCREASES.
THE IMPACT OF THIS PARTIAL DEREGULATION IS JUST BEGINNING TO
SURFACE IN FIGURES AVAILABLE ON BANK FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.

KEEP

IN MIND THAT 1983 WAS THE FIRST YEAR OF THE FULL IMPACT OF
LIABILITY SIDE DEREGULATION.
-6-

FOR

INSTANCE,

IN THE FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD'S REPORT ON THE

PERFORMANCE OF ALL COMMERCIAL BANKS FOR THE FlRST SIX MONTHS OF
1983, WE NOTE THAT THE NET INTEREST MARGIN (TAX ADJUSTED GROSS
INTEREST INCOME LESS GROSS INTEREST EXPENSE),

AS PERCENT OF

ASSETS, FELL FROM 5. 01 TO 4. 95 FOR BANKS UNDER $100 MILLION
ASSETS,

WHICH

COVERS NEARLY

STATE-CHARTERED BANKS.

THREE-FOURTHS OF OUR CALIFORNIA

THE FIGURE REMAINED CONSTANT FOR BANKS UP

TO $1 BILLION WHICH COVERS ALL BUT TEN OF OUR 273 STATE BANKS.
THIS INDICATES THAT AN INCREASED PROPORTION OF INTEREST IS BEING
PAID OUT BY THESE BANKS THAN IS BEING EARNED.

DURING THIS SAME PERIOD, THE FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD REPORTS, THAT
NON-INTEREST INCOME AS A PERCENT OF AVERAGE ASSETS, A PORTION OF
WHICH IS FEES AND CHARGES, FOR THESE SAME TWO CATEGORIES OF BANKS
ROSE FROM .67 TO .11 AND .89 TO .93 RESPECTIVELY.
ALSO, A RECENT REPORT BY OLSON RESEARCH ASSOCIATES, SURVEYING 140
BANKS NATIONWIDE,

DETERMIN·ED THAT FOR 1983 IT WAS THE NON-

INTEREST INCOME CATEGORY THAT RESCUED WHAT OTHERWISE WOULD HAVE
BEEN A DECLINE IN THOSE BANKS' PROFITABILITY MEASURES.

IT APPEARS THAT AS DEPOSITS BECOME PROPORTIONALLY MORE EXPENSIVE
TO ATTRACT, BANKS HAVE TURNED TO INCREASED FEE INCOME TO BALANCE
THIS INCREASED EXPENSE.

-7-

THIS IS NOT AN UNEXPECTED OCCURENCE.
1980

AND

1982

CONGRESSIONAL

DEBATES

IN FACT, THROUGHOUT THE
ON

THE

BANK

DEPOSIT

DEREGULATION LEGISLATION (DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS DEREGULATION
ACT OF 1980 AND GARN-ST. GERMAIN DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS ACT OF
1982) IT APPEARS TO BE CONGRESS' UNDERSTANDING, IF NOT INTENT,
THAT WHEN DEPOSIT INTEREST RATES WERE DEREGULATED, THERE WOULD
NECESSARILY BE A COUNTER-BALANCING INCREASE IN BANK FEES AND
CHARGES.

CONGRESS ACCEPTED THIS OCCURENCE AS BEING IN THE

INTEREST OF ALLOWING MARKETPLACE RATES AND COSTS FOR DEPOSIT
ACCOUNTS, AND ALSO AS BEING IMPORTANT TO THE SAFETY AND SOUNDNESS
OF THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS GIVEN THIS NEW DEPOSIT AUTHORITY.

WE HAVE

ATTEMPTED

CALIFORNIA
HEARING.

TO DEVELOP SOME COMPARABLE STATISTICS ON

STATE-CHARTERED

BANKS

FOR

THE

PURPOSES

OF

THIS

THE TIMING OF THIS HEARING IS PRIOR TO OUR COMPILATION

OF YEAR-END RESULTS AND, THEREFORE WE CAN ONLY REPORT SAMPLE
DATA.

WE WERE ABLE TO OBTAIN BANK CALL AND INCOME REPORT DATA FOR 112 OF
OUR STATE BANKS.

FOR THIS SAMPLE, WE NOTE THAT FROM YEAR-END 1982

TO 1983 THE NET INTEREST MARGIN AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL ASSETS
DECREASED FROM

4.78~

TO

4.44~.

WITH THE SAME SAMPLE WE FOUND THAT NON-INTEREST INCOME AS A
PERCENT OF TOTAL ASSETS, WHICH INCLUDES DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FEES AND
CHARGES INCREASED FROM .85J TO

.98~

-8-

DURING THE SAME PERIOD.

SPECIFICALLY,

WE LOOKED AT THE AMOUNT OF SERVICE CHARGES ON

DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS, AND NOTED THAT THEY INCREASED 25% ($47,504M TO
$59,620M).
OUR CALIFORNIA SAMPLE STATISTICS TELL A SIMILAR STORY TO THE
FEDERAL RESERVE BOARD'S STATISTICS.
ASIDE FROM THE USE OF FEES AND CHARGES AS A MEANS OF ADDRESSING
THE

PARTIAL

DEREGULATION SITUATION,

BANKS ARE

APPROPRIATELY

ADDRESSING THEIR FEES IN A MORE SYSTEMATIC AND FINANCIALLY SOUND
MANNER.

BANKS HAVE NECESSARILY BEGUN TO LOOK AT THE SERVICES

THEY PROVIDE, BASED ON THE COSTS OF PROVIDING THE SERVICE, AND
ARE PRICING THEM ACCORDINGLY.

THE THIRD FACTOR I WILL BRIEFLY DISCUSS TODAY IS THE COMPTROLLER
OF THE CURRENCY'S RECENT INTERPRETIVE RULING ON NATIONAL BANK
DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FEES.
AS YOU ARE EACH WELL AWARE, LAST DECEMBER COMPTROLLER CONOVER
ISSUED WHAT HE LABELED AN INTERPRETIVE RULING THAT PROHIBITS
STATES FROM LIMITING THE FEES WHICH NATIONAL BANKS CHARGE ON
DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS.
THIS RULING, HAS CREATED THE CONTROVERSY CURRENTLY SURROUNDING
THE MATTER OF BANK FEES.

-9-

REACTION TO MR. CONOVER'S RULING HAS BEEN HEATED ON MANY FRONTS.
ONE OF THE PRIMARY COMPLAINTANTS HAS BEEN THE CONFERENCE OF STATE
BANK

SUPERVISORS,

A

WASHINGTON,

D.C.

BASED

ORGANIZATION

REPRESENTING THE BANKING SUPERINTENDENTS FROM EACH OF THE FIFTY
STATES.

I SERVE ON THE BOARD OF THIS ORGANIZATION.

THEY HAVE

FORMALLY REQUESTED THAT COMPTROLLER CONOVER RESCIND HIS RULING.
THE OBJECTION IS BASED ON TWO KEY FACTORS:

(1) A VIOLATION OF

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES, IN THAT NO NOTICE OR OPPORTUNITY FOR
PUBLIC COMMENT WAS OFFERED PRIOR TO ADOPTING THE RULING, AND (2)
MOST IMPORTANTLY, FROM THE PERSPECTIVE OF THE CONFERENCE OF STATE
BANK SUPERVISORS AS WELL AS OUR DEPARTMENT, AND PRESUMABLY FROM
YOUR , AS LEGISLATORS, THE SIGNIFICANCE OF MR. CONOVER'S ACTION
WITH RESPECT TO STATE'S RIGHTS AND HIS ABILITY TO PREEMPT STATE
LAW IN THE AREA OF BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FEES.

THE CONFERENCE OF STATE BANK SUPERVISORS ARGUES THAT THERE IS
LEGAL PRECEDENT, AFFIRMED FOR NEARLY A CENTURY, THAT STATES HAVE
THE RIGHT TO REGULATE THE CONTRACTUAL ACTIVITIES OF NATIONAL
BANKS IN THEIR STATE SUCH AS DEPOSIT ACCOUNT SERVICE CHARGES.
THEY

SAY

THAT

IN

FACT,

ACKNOWLEDGED THIS MATTER.

IN

1977,

THE

COMPTROLLER'S

OFFICE

THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT, AS

RECENTLY AS 1983, HAS DETERMINED THAT THE TRADITIONAL REGULATORY
POWERS OF THE STATES MAY NOT BE DISPLACED BY FEDERAL ACTION
"UNLESS THAT WAS THE CLEAR AND MANIFEST PURPOSE OF CONGRESS".

-10-
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ON

THE

OTHER

APPROPRIATE

HAND,

AND

MR.

CONOVER

PRESUMABLY

ARGUES

THAT

CONTEMPLATED BY

PREEMPTION

CONGRESS

IN

IS
THE

PASSAGE OF THE 1980 AND 1982 DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS DEREGULATION
LEGISLATION.

IN HIS POSITION OF GUARDIAN OF THE SAFETY AND

JUST AS THE CONFERENCE OF STATE BANK SUPERVISORS CITES THE "CLEAR
AND MANIFEST PURPOSE" JUDICIAL PRECEDENT TO CLAIM PREEMPTION IS
INVALID, OTHERS CLAIM THAT CONOVER'S PREEMPTION IS SUPPORTED BY
SUPREME COURT. PRECEDENT WHICH HAS DETERMINED THAT STATE LAW WHICH
STANDS AS AN OBSTACLE TO THE ACCOMPLISHMENT OF THE FULL PURPOSE
AND OBJECTIVES OF CONGRESS IS PREEMPTED.
FROM THE CALIFORNIA PERSPECTIVE, CONOVER'S ACTION CAN BE VIEWED
FROM TWO EXTREME POINTS OF VIEW.

IN ONE SENSE, CONSIDERING OUR HISTORICAL AND CURRENT POLICY OF
NOT REGULATING BANK FEES, THE CONOVER RULING HAS NO PRACTICAL
EFFECT.

WE DO NOT REGULATE BANK FEES OR CHARGES FOR EITHER STATE
-11-

OR NATIONAL BANKS, SO CONOVER CHANGES NOTHING.
MARK~TPLACE

HIS RULING FOR

DETERMINATION IS CONSISTENT WITH OUR ADOPTED POLICY

OF MARKETPLACE DETERMINATION WITH DISCLOSURES.
THE OTHER POINT OF VIEW CONSIDERS THE PREEMPTION ON A PROSPECTIVE
BASIS.

UNDER THE CONOVER RULING, CALIFORNIA'S OPTION TO REGULATE

THE FEES OF NATIONAL BANKS IN THE FUTURE IS PRESUMABLY REMOVED
SHOULD THE LEGISLATURE OR THE PEOPLE CHOOSE TO ALTER CURRENT
PUBLIC POLICY.
I SHOULD POINT OUT THAT THE OPTION TO REGULATE THE FEES OF STATE
BANKS WOULD REMAIN.

HOWEVER,

THAT WOULD BE A PARTICULARLY

DIFFICULT STATE OF AFFAIRS TO CREATE, AND WOULD BE VIEWED AS VERY
ANTI-COMPETITIVE IF CALIFORNIA CHOSE TO LIMIT THE FEES OF STATE
BANKS BUT COULD NOT SIMILARLY LIMIT THOSE OF NATIONAL BANKS IN
CALIFORNIA.

AND BEYOND THAT THE EQUALLY COMPETITIVE MARKETPLACE

ARGUMENT IS A NATIONAL ONE, AS THE ADVENT OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
DEREGULATION WAS IN DIRECT RESPONSE TO NATIONWIDE COMPETITION
FROM MONEY MARKET FUNDS.
IT IS WITH THIS SECOND POINT OF VIEW THAT THE MOST CONCERN IS
RAISED FOR THOSE WITH CONCERN AND INTEREST IN STATE'S RIGHTS AND
WITH CONCERN FOR THE PRECEDENT OF A FEDERAL REGULATORY AGENCY'S
ABILITY

TO

UNILATERALLY

PREEMPT

LONG-STANDING

STATE

DETERMINATION.
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I THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO EXPRESS THE VIEWPOINT OF THE
STATE BANKING DEPARTMENT AND TO PROVIDE THE COMMITTEE WITH
INFORMATION FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION AS YOU REVIEW THIS ISSUE •

••••••
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TESTIMONY FOR RAY MARTIN, CHAIRMAN
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TESTIMONY FOR RAY rARIIN. CHAIRMAN, CALIFORNIA LEAGUE OF SAVINGS INSTITUTIONS
AND PRESIDENT, COA~T ~AVlNGS:
SENATE BANKING AND

C~RCE C~ITTEE

TEST]MQNY

SERVICE CHARGES

HISTORICALLY, SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS WERE LIMITED AS TO THE
INTEREST RATES THEY COULD PAY FOR SAVINGS DEPOSITS.

COSTS RELATED TO

MAINTAINING THE DEPOSITS AS WELL AS OTHER SERVICES WERE ABSORBED BY THE
INSTITUTION AS A FORM OF "NON-PRICE COMPETITION." DEREGULATION, AS OF THt
DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS DEREGULATION ACT OF 1980, HAS CAUSED SUBSTANTIAL
CHANGES ON THE DEPOSIT SIDE OF SAVINGS INSTITUTION BALANCE SHEETS.

THE

SUBSTANTIAL THRUST OF THESE CHANGES HAS BEEN TO CAUSE OUR INSTITUTIONS TO PAY
MARKET INTEREST RATES ON THESE ACCOUNTS.

THE DEREGULATION OF INTEREST RATES

AND THE SHIFT TO PAYING MARKET RATES FOR FUNDS HAS CAUSED FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS TO "UNBUNDLE" THEIR SERVICES AND PRICE THEM SEPARATELY.

WE

UNDERSTAND THAT THIS COMMITTEE WILL BE CONSIDERING SOME OF THE ISSUES WHICH I
WILL NOW ADDRESS.
WHY IS IT NECESSARY TO. ASSESS A SERVICE

CHARGE ON A SAVINGS ACCOUNT

IF THE BALANCE DROPS BELOW A SPECIFIED

A~OUNT?

SAVINGS ACCOUNTS ARE COSTLY TO MAINTAIN. THE FEDERAL RESERVE
FUNCTIONAL COSTS ANALYSIS REPORT FOR 1982 INDICATED AN AVERAGE ANNUAL EXPENSE
PER ACCOUNT TO BE OVER $42.

THE BALANCE IN AN ACCOUNT MUST BE SUFFICIENT TO

COVER THIS COST AND EARN A REASONABLE RETURN.

SINCE LOW BALANCE SAVINGS

ACCOUNTS COMPRISE APPROXIMATELY 40% OF OUR INSTITUTIONS' PASSBOOK TYPE
ACCOUNTS, A SERVICE CHARGE IS JUSTIFIED.

PAGE 2

WHAT TYPE OF FEES DO SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS PRESENTLY CHARGE?
SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS CHARGE IN THE FOLLOWING AREAS:
CHECKING ACCOUNT CHARGES, CREDIT CARD FEES AND RETIREMENT PLAN TRUSTEE FEES;
SERVICES SUCH AS TRAVELERS CHECKS, MONEY ORDERS, SAFE DEPOSIT BOXES AND COPYING
SERVICES ARE MOST OFTEN PROVIDED FREE TO CUSTOMERS WHO MAINTAIN MINIMUM
BALANCES.

WHAT TYPE OF SERVICE CHARGES ARE NECESSARY FOR Air TRANSACTIONS?
AT~

PERFORMED.

SERVICE CHARGES COULD BE JUSTIFIED FOR MOST TRANSACTIONS

HOWEVER, IT IS LIKELY THAT ONLY

ATtJ WITHDRAWALS WILL BE ASSES·SED

SERVICE CHARGES.

bHAT ARE SCM: Of THE SERVICES 00 ACUVITIES lliAT SAVINGS NfJ LOAN
ASSOCIATIQNS DO NOT CHARGE FOR. lliAT THEY f:4AY CHARGE FOR IN THE FliiURE?
.
.
WiTH DEREGULATION AND MARKET RATES OF INTEREST, SAVINGS AND LOAN
'

'

ASSOCIATIONS Will HAVE TO BEGIN TO "UNBUNDLE" SERVICES AND CHARGE FOR
CONVENIENCE TYPE SERVICES SUCH AS:

SAFE DEPOSIT BOXES, TRAVEllERS CHECKS,

MONEY ORDERS, COPYING SERVICES AND CHECK CASHING, WHERE COSTS OF THESE
SERVICES JUSTIFY A CHARGE.

As PART OF THE PRICING PROCESS, EXISTING FEES MUST ALSO BE
REEVALUATED AND BROUGHT INTO LINE BY COMPETITIVE FORCES.

IN THE AREA OF FEES,

AS IT IS NOW 'WITH INTEREST RATES, THE MARKET PLACE SHOULD CONTINUE TO BE THE
DETERMINING FACTOR.
ADDITIONAllY, MANY INSTITUTIONS REQUIRE MINIMUM BALANCES IN PASSBOOK
AND CHECKING ACCOUNTS;

WHEN SUCH MINIMUM BALANCES ARE NOT MAINTAINED, SERVICE

FEES ARE ASSESSED TO COVER COSTS OF MAINTAINING THE ACCOUNTS.
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Madam Chair Senator Vuich, t-1embers of the Committee:
I welcome the invitation to appear before the Committee
today.

I offer my

con~ratulations

to the Committee, and

particularly its Chair Senator Vuich, for your foresight in
holdin~

this fact-gathering hearing today.

Summary of Conclusions
My remarks will cover two questions.

First, what do we know

about the spectrum of fees charged in the financial services
industry for deposit account services.

Secondly, what is an

appropriate role for state government in obtaining information
about these fees and establishing a structure for regulating _the
fees.
I recognize

I

as I am sure you do,, that there is enormous

popular interest in the changing relationship between banks and
their c·ustomers.

When I last appeared before the Committee, I

!;poke as an expert consultant on behalf of the Speaker of the
Assembly, Willie Brown, Jr., regardin3 the AB 17 _2 3 commonly
called the "float" bill.

Thi~

bill, as you know, was signed by

Governor Deukmeijian on September 21, 1983,. and became effective
January 1, 1984.

While the float legislation was pending, the

Speaker received an unprecedented 10,000 individually written
letters expressing support for state legislation setting J.Jmits
on the practice of some financial institutions of holdin3 the
funds of depositors during the check collection

1~ocess,

for

long periods which were unrelated to the actual time needed to
clear these checks.

In addition customers were c;>utraged that a

good credit history was often not taken into account in setting
the arbitrary blanket hold.

The interest expressed durin; that legislative endeavor
continues today.

He have every indication that consumers are

r!qually concerned about the proliferation of new fees.
I have concluded that two actions seem appropriate.

First,

there is clearly a void of concrete up-to-date information about
the new collection of financial services and the impact of
services on the average individual depositor.
starting

t~int

As a minimum

it seems entirely appropriate for this body to

enact legislation which will authorize the.systematic collection
of data about fees.

Information is power.

I urge you to

establish a central authority for collecting and making publicly
available

info~mation

about fees for financial services.

Second, it would be wise to continue to play an active role
in the

oversi~ht

of state chartered banks.

Moreover, the

Comptroller of the Currency's recent ruling that asserts federal
preemption of this question for federally chartered banks is
ill-advised, especially in light of the major reorganization now
under way in the federal regulatory structure.
danger that while the federal

re~ulatory reor~anization

proyress practices which should be closely
regulation by anyone.

There is great

~toni tored

is in

will escape

A year from now it rnay. be too late to

close the barn door after the horses are long gone.

Therefore,

I have concluded that an active role for state agencies and
state courts is essential to maintain creative levels of
governmental oversight during this important period of
transition.
Introduction
The banking service occupies a centrdl place in the life of

the typical American family.

Advertising helps to carry the

messa9e that the very enjoyment of life depends upon
establishing good relations with one's banker.

The pathos of an

elated couple sharing the news that "we got the loan," suggests
the modern opposite of the turn of the century lament "we lost
the farm."

By dint of sophisticated advertising appeals, the

banking industry conveys the message that its services are
equally available to all who apply.
These powerful representations serve to further reinforce
the public perception that financial services are available to
any 1nember of the public who seeks them, or at least for any
member coming within certain standards.

'

.

..
Checks are a safe and inexpensive means of transferring
funds.

In 1979 approximately 35 billion checks valued at over

$20 trillion were issued by Americans.!

There are approximately

122 million checking accounts nationwide.2

The cost of

maintaining and servicing these accounts has been estimated at
1% of the Gross National Product. 3

A checkin3 account is a

basic necessity of living in the modern age.
customers are woven together in a complex web.

Banks and their
Typically, a

financial institution will be the source of bank-issued credit
cards and deposit accounts.

On the basis of this long-term

continuing relation customers expect and receive some favorable
consideration for loans.

Thus, the checking account serves as

an important basis for establishing creditworthiness, as well as
a necessary substitute for cash.
During periods of economic dislocation the checking account
assumes even greater importance.

As household budgets become

tighter, even middle-income wage earners ma.y find themselves
tied to their checking accounts by a very short tether.
Excessive charges for checking services simply .disturb the

1. Comptroller General's Report to the Congress, "The Federal
Reserve Should Move Faster to Eliminate Subsidy of Check
Clearing Operations," May 7, 1982, at 1.
2.

Id. at 5.

3.
Id. at note 1. This figure incluues the cost incurred by
commercial banks, households, business and government for
printing checks, processin3 check payments, clearing checks,
maintaining checking accounts, mailirl<"J statements, and writing
and r.1ail ing checks.

precarious balance of these accounts.

The checking account for

most of us is indeed a basic necessity of life in the modern
age.
The banking relationship, unlike the oftentimes transitory
transactions of other providers of basic services, assumes added
importance because it is continuous.
services industry is today, in

ev~ry

The banking and financial
sense of the word, an

enterprise that affects the public interest.

While no one has

called for a comprehensive scheme of regulation such as exists
in tradi tiona! utili tie~, the· importance of the financial
services industry was recognized early in the history of this
country, and this recognition continues today.

While there are

some who claim that bankers and grocers and indistinguishable
simply because they "provide consumers with the basic
necessities of life," historically we have always been quite
sensitive to the role of financial services in our daily lives.
Thus, the directly dependent and concinuous relacionship of low
and middle income consumers provides a preliminary basis for
refusing to treat the banking industry as just another business
which should be permitted to conduct its affairs, ans\ier ing only
to the marketplace.

A.

The Commercial Setting
*Domestic Factors
There are some who would have us believe that the coming era

of competition in the retail bankimJ industry will bring
salvation for the small borrower.

They argue that competition

from money market funds, Now Accounts and credit union share

draft accounts will accrue to the interest, quite literally, of
their depositors.

Respondents overstate the possibilities.

Dramatically dimmer prospects are equally plausible.

The new

competition has increased pressure on managers, strategic
planners and marketing specialists to price services more
aggressively to recoup the lost subsidy from interest-free
demand deposit accounts for which they are obligated to pay
interest.

Charges for routine banking service will increase to

provide needed revenue to support interest for checking
accounts.
*International Factors
Many industry analysts recognize . that the prospect of a
staggering default on outstanding loans to foreign goverments
could threaten the viability of many financial institutions.
Moreover, the predictions of this default

h~ve

already affected

the perfomance of bank stocks and bank earnings •. Thus, in
addition to the uncertainty of domestic competition, problem
foreign loans may create pressure to raise account charges
precipitously.4

We can all agree that there is no free lunch

without also concluding that the government has no role to play
in monitoring the proliferation of charges imposed on deposit
account services.
Ironically, some have urged this committee to rely on
federal regulation to oversee the interests of depositors.

But

4. See e.g., Interview with David Cates, "Big Banks, Big
Questions," Barrens.
Nov. 7, 1983, p. 6.
[Editors) "We can't
think of a more controversial group these days than the banks,
not least because of the billions on billions of dubious foreign
loans on their books.
[Cates]:
I think there is a laryer issue
on the foreign loans than accounting • • • • l'lell, I happen to
be pessimistic about it."

those same regulators have quite frankly expressed their
pessimism .about the suitability of the existing regulatory
structure to handle the emerging problems.

For example, Richard

Breeden, Deputy Counsel to the Vice President and Staff Director
of the President's Task Group on the Regualtion of Financial
Services, has remarked:
""At the same t"ime that enormous changes have
been occurring in the financial markets
themselves, the federal regulatory system for
financial services has remained relatively static,
and thereby has become

....

incr~asin;ly

archaic

In short, most of the regulatory system

of today was created for a world which is long
gone, and whose financial markets had more in
comn~n

with the financial world of the Thirteen

Colonies than with the worldwide electronic
integration which we know ·today. "5
One need not disagree with those who have observed that
competition is comin;, to reject

~heir

benefit the demand account depositor.

conclusion that it will
There is consensus among

knowledgeable observers of the financial services industry that
the short term effects of cornpeti tion from the entry of non-bank
competitors, and the lifting of interest rate ceilings, cannot
be predicted with any certainty.6

5. Breeden, "Federal Regualtion of Financial Services: Time
for a Change," 30 Federal Bar News and Journal 316, 317-18 (June
1983).

6. See e.g. Robert Bennett, "Bank of America's E
p tJ Runs
Rougher, Nr.Y. Times, p. 1, col. 3, sec. 3, oct. J8~Yl9~3!

Even if one accepts the sanguine appraisal of the potential
benefits .of competition for low and middle income checking
account depositors, the future has not yet arrived •.

The system

at issue in this case is one of extraordinary disadvantage to
small depositors.?

1.
Two commentators speak in harmony of the injury to
depositors, who for years have surrendered their hard-earned
dollars to checking accounts which yield no interest in exchange
for the 1Jrivilege of delayed access to funds and excessive fees,
includin3 fees for _NSF checks and dormant accounts:

Mr. Breeden noted that:
~ • • • small savers, • • • were relegated to minimal
yields on savings while large investors were realizing
market rates of return. Whatever · their rationale,
artificial interest rate ceilin~s were terribly unfair
to ordinary savers." Supra note 10 at 317.

Another commentator shares this view:
"The government set limits on the amount banks and
savings institutions could pay on deposits of less than
$100,000 and these limits usually were far below the
going cost of funds.
In effect, the small depositor
was subsidizing the bank.
For many years, • • • bank(s) thrived under
regualtion • • • • branches blanketed California,
sopping up billions of dollars in low-cost deposits."
Bennet supra note 11.

What Do \'le Know About the Spectrum of New Fees and the Packaging
of Depository Services?
There is an appalling deficiency of uniform information
about consumer financial

ser~ices.

If you look through the many

public documents and the research in the field of consumer
financial services you will see that hlUch of the information
about the fees now in place is anecdotal.

Those of us who do

research in this field have had to rely on newspaper surveys,
limited surveys by the industry research publications like the
Bank Adr,linistration Institute.
The only other major source of information available is data
collected during litigation.

For obvious reasons the product of

discovery generated by the adversarial relationship of a law
suit is a highly unsatisfactory source of information.
I urge you to:
Authorize the collection and publication of:
o

Data on the type and amount of fees charged to
de po s i tors •

o

the policy of each institution concerning the waiver of
fees for special classes .of customers.

o

the array of financial services packages offered to
depositors.

These elementary steps are no

as~urance

that the confusion

which the average depositor is experiencing today will go away.
Uowever, neutral collection of this information by a public body
will give an

opr~rtunity

for those of us who are professionals

in this field to diagnose the signs of ill health and ·recommend
a cure.

A Role for State Regulation
It would be a serious mistake to retreat from the historical
involvement of state legislatures in revie\iing the effect of
bank practices on the citizens of the State.
A.

The legislature can and should:
o

authorize systematic collection of data about fees

o

reserve the power to limit abusive practices
should they develop.

o

be prepared to authorize a more aggressive
regulatory structure should the federal agencies
adopt a laissez faire

~pproach

to discharging

responsibility.
B.

The Courts

There is a well established body of common law which would
allow courts to review aspects of the bank-c.ustomer relationship
under doctrines of:
o

Adhesion contract

o

Unconscionability

o

Unfair business practice

o

fraud

The cxi stence of these tools for judicial review should not
foreclose simultaneous legislative action.

Indeed the

historical role of the courts is to resolve particular disputes.
The legislature is by contrast best able to design corrective
remedies for problems which are institutional and/or systemic in
nature.
Conclusion
I urge you to turn on the lights.

TO take an active role in

elevatinc:J the level of information available to the public and

to financial services professionals.
I commend you for making a start on this process today.
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The Honorable Rose Ann Vuich
Chair, Senate Banking and Commerce Committee
State Capitol, Room 5066
Sacramento, Cali~ornia 95814
RE:

FEBRUARY 8 HEARING RELATING TO BANK .FEES

s~: W£ ~1/\V\ ',

Dear

During the latter part of the Senate Banking and Commerce
Committee hearing last week relating to bank fees and service
charges, Harry Snyder of Consumer's Union made a start~ing comment
in response to a question from Senator Torres. Mr. Snyder said
that the California Bankers Association (CBA) had filed an amicus
curiae brief with the California Supreme Court addressing the
effect of the Comptroller of the Currency's December 2, 1983
interpretive ruling pertaining to national bank service charges
and fees.
Mr. Snyder's statement was startling because I had no
knowledge of the fact that my employer had filed this brief.
This is particularly regrettable because I had earlier told
Senator Torres, in response to one of his questions during the
hearing, that the California Bankers Association had no position
on the Comptroller's ruling and we would not support a joint
resolution urging Congress and the President to rescind the
ruling. · Obviously, if I had been aware of the fact that my
employer had filed the brief, my answer to Senator Torres would
have been different. In view of my earlier response on this
matter, Senator Torres became quite angry after Mr. Snyder's
revelation.
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Clearly, I am at fault for not being aware of the fact that
the brief had been filed and I apologize for any misinformation
that I might have conveyed to you and your colleagues at the
hearing. All of my statements at the hearing were accurate within
the parameters of the facts that were available to me.
Sincerely,

GEORGE R. COOK
Vice President
State Government Relations
GRC:mb
cc: Senator Art Torres
E. D. Bonta, CBA Executive Director

SENATE COMMITTEE ON
BANKING AND COMMERCE
Senator Rose AJin Vuich, Chair
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SERVICE CHARGES
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REGULATORS:
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Lou Carter, Superintendent of Banks, State Banking
Department, Sacramento, California.
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Larry Taggart, Commissioner, Department of Sayings and
Loan, San Francisco, California.
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1.

L. Robert Connelly, Chairman of California Bankers
Association Operations Committee~ · Senior Vice President,
Union Bank, Los Angeles, California.
·

2.

George R. Cook, Vice President, State Government
Relations, California Bankers Association, Sacramento,
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SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS

C.

1.

R~y Martin, President, Coast Savings~ Chairman,
California League of Savings Institutions, Los Angeles,
California.

2.
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Coord1nator, California League of Savings Institutions,
Sacramento, California.
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